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Corporate Profile
NEINY

Our Company was established in the Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007. Our
Group's history dates back to 2001 when Hunan Yingde was established in the PRC. Our
Company's Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 8
October 2009. Our Company wholly owns Yingde BVI which is incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands and is an investment holding company of our Group.

Based on the research information in the SAI Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier specialized in on-site gas supply in China in terms of

total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012.

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site and
merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen, nitrogen and
argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those whose premises are
located on or in close proximity to our gas production facilities and to whom we supply
industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers generally include liquid gas distributors
and other industrial companies who purchase industrial gases from us on a spot market

basis from time to time.

We differentiate our on-site operation and merchant operation as well as the revenue
generated from the respective operations in accordance with the type of customers to
which we sell our gas products. In relation to the on-site operation, we generate revenue
by selling our gas products to those customers with whom we have entered into long-
term gas supply contracts. In relation to the merchant operation, we generally generate
revenue by selling our gas products (which are produced from the remaining available
capacity of our on-site production facilities as well as our dedicated merchant production
facilities) to local distributors on the spot market. We also enter into gas supply contracts
with a selected number of merchant customers who have a stable and regular demand
for our gas products. Pursuant to such contracts, we supply gas products on a regular
basis during the term of the relevant gas supply contracts. The on-site production facilities
referred to in this report relate to those which we construct after having entered into
long-term gas supply contracts with industrial companies. The merchant production
facilities referred to in this report relate to those which we generally operate without

entering into long-term gas supply contracts with customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (our “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, referred to as our "Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2012. | would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders

for your continuous support and concem.

Due to the negative impact of the global economic crisis which occurred around the
end of 2011, the global economic growth slowed down in 2012, resulting in a recession
across all sectors worldwide. The manufacturing industry underperformed in the first half
of 2012 due to keen competition in the industry and substantially weaker demand from
downstream industries. The overall market is yet to recover fully despite the improved

conditions for the second half of 2012.

As certain improvements were made in technologies across manufacturing industries,
industrial gas are widely used in most of them. According to the SAIl Report of 2012,
China's Gross Industrial Gas reaches US $7.2 billion and it is expected to reach US $11.3
billion by 2017.

In addition, there have been a growing number of end users in China switching their gas
operations to independent gas companies, they can benefit from the professional services
and technical expertise, which will help to reduce their operation costs and risks and
allow them to focus more on their core business operations. As a result, the industrial
outsourcing market grows rapidly. The industrial outsourcing market accounts for 24% of

the total industrial gas market now and it is expected to increase to 25% by 2017,

BUSINESS REVIEW

According to the SAI Report of 2012, our Group is the largest independent industrial gas
supplier specialized in on-site gas supply in the PRC. In 2012, China's macro economy
slowed down its pace of growth, our Group, with its extensive market experience and
excellent professional teams, has established itself as a reliable gas provider and was
awarded with premium projects. As at the end of 2012, our Group had 41 production
facilities in operation with a total installed oxygen capacity of 1,042,400 Nm?/hr.
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Chairman’s Statement continueq)
FERE®

During the year, we steadily developed our on-site gas supply business and constructed
more production bases in strategic locations in the PRC while focusing on the research
and development of new technologies. Apart from iron and steel makers in recent years,
our customer network was expanded to include coal chemical and nonferrous metal
producers. Nowadays, we have 38 on-site gas supply facilities in operation with a total

installed oxygen capacity of 1,039,400 Nm?®/hr.

For the merchant business, we have more than 1,000 merchant customers, most of them
are located in highly-industrialised regions, including Jiangsu, Shandong and Guangdong,
which have an enormous demand for industrial gas. The price and the market demand of
oxygen decreased due to the economic downturn in 2012. Besides, the market demand
and the price of nitrogen remained stable while the demand of argon decrease as the

photovoltaic market kept dampened.
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Chairman’s Statement continued)
FEHRE@®

OUTLOOK RE

Looking forward to 2013, our Group will grow our business steadily. More facilities will BEWIF  AEBSUEBRENEERE

be put into operation to further expand our business coverage in 2013. In addition, the 2% REERWI3EBHEEEZHNRERA

Group will aim to identify more quality customers and maintain its leading position in the HE TIEARAMERBEL - 1N KNEE

industry by adopting appropriate strategies in light of market changes. SEIMRE L ERIBEENRE  LWWEES
BERFPRRFETEANEBL RIS E

2 o
™

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our business partners and customers BB KAAENKe  BRHANEENHEEYE
for their continuous support and trust. Meanwhile, | would like to express my sincere REEZENIHNET - BE - I+ 9=
gratitude to our staff for their efforts over the past year. We will strive to maximise the PEETINBE—FRNFESE  RMSEER

return to our shareholders and Directors. NEREENRENESEREANER o
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun

Chairman and chief executive officer FERITEAE

28 March 2013 —T—=%=A=1+N\H
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis

ITHARBREREEBNRE DM

On behalf of our Company's management team, | am pleased to report our Group's 2012

results to our shareholders as follows:

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The booming industrial gas market was due to the rapid development of industries such as
steel and coal chemical in recent years with increasing capacity which boosted the demand
for industrial gas. According to the SAI Report of 2012, the CAGR of China industrial gas
market from 2012 to 2017 is 9.6%, China's gross industrial gas will reach US $11.3 billion
by 2017.

On the other hand, the trend of phasing out backward production capacity in industries
such as steel and coal chemical became more apparent as the direction of the energy
conservation and discharge reduction policy is clearer which encouraged the outsourcing
trend of industrial gas. Also, as the industry is full of opportunities, more new industrial gas
companies have entered the market in recent years, leading to more intense competition

in the industry.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economy remained volatile following the recession in 201 1. China's iron and
steel industry finally rallied in the fourth quarter from an overall weakness in 2012. Despite
slowing economic growth, our Group still maintained stable development and signed a

total of || new on-site gas supply contracts in 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, our Group had a total of 41 facilities in operation and 30
facilities under development. The total installed capacity amounted to 1,042,400 Nm?/hr
in terms of installed oxygen capacity, representing an increase of 10.8% as compared with
the corresponding period last year. During the year, our Group sold 13,267 million Nm?
of industrial gases, representing a growth of 29.4% as compared with the corresponding
period last year. The total sales volume of oxygen products, nitrogen products and argon
products were 6,725 million Nm? 5,808 million Nm? and 127 million Nm?, respectively. It
is expected that the total installed capacity will exceed 1,800,000 Nm?hr in 2015 when

construction of all facilities under development will be completed.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THRRBEREEEN®ER D@

REVIEW OF ON-SITE GAS SUPPLY OPERATIOIN

We are principally engaged in on-site gas supply. After years of continuing development
and with our professional management, we currently possess a stable and quality customer
base and have an established professional reputation in the industrial gas industry. To
ensure reliable and stable gas supply to our customers, we provided on-site services
such as design, construction, operation and maintenance for production facilities at our

customers’ premises or in close proximity.

According to the SAl Report of 2012, our Group, further increasing its market share from
36.9% in 2011 to 40.9% in 2012, is the largest independent on-site industrial gas supplier
in the PRC, and its major gas products include oxygen, nitrogen and argon. As at 3|
December 2012, the turnover of our Group's on-site gas supply business amounted to
RMB4,357 million, representing an increase of 24.9% as compared with the corresponding
period last year. On-site gas supply accounted for approximately 87.9% of the turnover
of our Group, mainly contributed by customers from the steel, chemical and nonferrous
metals industries. To secure stable stream of income, our Group has been stringent in
the selection of customers, and will normally enter into long-term take-or-pay on-site
gas supply contracts of |5 to 30 years with on-site customers, and long-term on-site gas

supply contracts including terms of minimum gas supply with customers of on-site gas

supply.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued
THRASHEREEETRE D M@

EXPANSION BY NEW PROJECTS

As at 31 December 2012, we signed new long-term on-site gas supply contracts as

ZRFEEREER
BZE20NRFNA3NBILE AEBEIHNTE

follows: HESHREHNMT
Expected installed
capacity
(Nm>/hr)
Location Industry of customer B RKRE
FEES R T 173 (BEILTK N
Anhui ZH1 Chemical 1t T 45000  (oxygen)(&R,)

Guangdong &R

Hebei ja4t

Hebei A1t

Henan )

Jiangsu JT &

Shandong L

Shandong I &

Shandong I

Shanxi [ 78

Xinjiang ¥T58

Steel

Steel S

Chemical 1t T

Nonferrous metal B &4 B

Steel S

Steel S

Chemical {t T

Chemical 1t T

Steel S

Steel $H

60,000  (oxygen)(ER.)

15000 (oxygen)(&.R,)

40,000  (hydrogen)(E%,)

6400  (oxygen)(ER.)

30,000 (oxygen)(ER.)

40,000  (oxygen)(&R)

5000  (hydrogen)(EL&.)

6500  (hydrogen)(R)

20000  (oxygen)(&F)

20000  (oxygen)(&R.)

o YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis continued)

THRRBEREEEN®ER D@

REVIEW OF MERCHANT GAS OPERATION

As at 31 December 2012, affected by factors such as prolonged downturn of the
manufacturing sector and shrinking demand from downstream industries due to poor
operation, the turnover of our Group's merchant gas operation amounted to RMB599
million, representing a decrease of 20.3% as compared with the corresponding period last
year, and accounting for approximately 12.1% of the turnover of our Group. The dropping
demand of oxygen was affected by the slowdown of economic growth, while the price of

and demand for argon was still feeble due to the sluggish photovoltaic market in the PRC.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Leveraging on our comprehensive market policy, effective control over cost and
expenditure, development of business, and devotion from our management and staff, we
recorded an increase in our production and sales in 2012. Our Group recorded a steady

growth in 2012.

For the year ended 3| December 2012, our tumover increased by RMB716 million to
RMB4,956 million from RMB4,240 million in 201 1. The increase in turnover is mainly
attributable to the commencement of 5 on-site facilities during the year and the full
ramp-up of facilities that commenced operation in 201 |, which was however partially

offset by lower merchant sales revenue.

In addition, our Group recorded profit attributable to equity shareholders of our Company
of RMB770 million (201 I: RMB83 | million). The earings per share were RMB0.426 (201 I:
RMBO0.460).
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued
THRABBREREEETNWRD M

TURNOVER

Our turnover consists of proceeds from the sale of industrial gas products. Our turnover

is recognized when our gas products are delivered to a customer's premises and such

customer has accepted the goods in which we have transferred the related risks and

rewards of ownership. The turnover figures represent the aggregation of the invoiced

value of goods sold, net of value-added tax. Our turnover increased by 16.9% from

RMB4,240 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB4,956 million for the

year ended 3| December 2012.

5,500
5,000
4,500
4,000
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

s

(RMB million) (A R#E &)

2008

2009

2010

(Year ended 31 December)
(BZE12831HLLFE)

The table below sets out tumover generated from our on-site and merchant customers

for the years indicated:

ON
BRPORABEEE TR RERNAER
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FEmER &R ERER - WABTFRIDA
BERENHEEEREREE - ARFAMEKA
BEZE2011F 1A BEFENARK 4240
BETEMICIZEERE2012F12A3181E
FEMARKEAS6EHET -

2011

2012

TREFINFIRERAERGRRRTERFE
9L ONE

Year ended 3| December

BEZ A3 HLEEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R (%) ARETR (%)
Turnover WA
On-site 15 4,356,677 87.9 3,487,923 823
Merchant TE 599,256 12.1 752,352 17.7
Total ast 4,955,933 100.0 4240275 100.0
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (contined)

THRARBREREEENWR D e

The table below sets out the weighted average unit price of gases sold to our merchant

customers for the years indicated:

TREIINATFENARFANTEEFHER
DT EALEL :

Year ended 31 December
BENANALEE
2012 2011
Unit price (RMB/Nm?®)
BRERARE/BELHK)

Oxygen ag 0.92 1.05
Nitrogen AR 0.78 0.83
Argon R 1.98 337
Weighted Average Price IET BB 110 1.36

COST OF SALES

Our cost of sales comprises utility expenses, depreciation expenses for property, plant and
equipment related to production, staff costs for our production team and other expenses.
Utility expenses, mainly consisting of electricity expenses and steam expenses, represented
85.0% and 85.5% of our total cost of sales for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011 respectively. Depreciation and amortization expenses relate primarily to property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets we own and are calculated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of these assets. Staff costs mainly relate to salaries,
bonuses, benefits and contributions that we pay to our employees or make for the benefit
of our employees in our production team. Other expenses primarily consist of other

consumables as well as repair and maintenance.

Cost of sales increased by 21.3% from RMB2,789 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to RMB3,383 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 which was mainly
driven by increased tumover. Cost of sales as a percentage of turover increased from
65.8% for the year ended 3| December 201 | to 68.3% for the year ended 3| December

2012, mainly as a result of lowered selling prices in the retail market and sluggish demand.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THRREIHEREEENRR D e

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit increased by 8.4% from RMBI,451 million for the year ended 3|
December 201 | to RMBI,573 million for the year ended 31 December 2012. Our gross
profit margin decreased from 34.2% for the year ended 31 December 201 | to 31.7% for
the year ended 31 December 2012. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due

to decrease in demand and average selling price of merchant gases.

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME
Other revenue and net income mainly includes subsidies and grants from local government

authorities.

SELLING EXPENSES

Our selling expenses primarily consist of freight charges for distribution and logistics,
travelling expenses and staff costs in connection with hiring and maintaining our sales team
across different regions in the PRC. Selling expenses increased by 37.1% from RMBI32
million for the year ended 31 December 201 | to RMBI81 million for the year ended 31

December 2012, mainly due to our continued investment in expanding the sales team.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses primarily consist of staff costs in connection with hiring and
retaining our management and administrative staff at our headquarters and production
plant level, travel and entertainment expenses, external consulting fees and impairment
loss of accounts receivable and other non-current assets. Administrative expenses
increased RMB7 | million from RMB239 million for the year ended 31 December 201 | to
RMB310 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS AND OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, our profit from operations increased by 1.0% from RMBI,09 |
million for the year ended 31 December 201 | to RMBI,102 million for the year ended
31 December 2012, while our operating profit margin decreased from 25.7% for the year
ended 31 December 201 | to 22.2% for the year ended 3| December 2012.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis continued)

THRRBEREEEN®ER D@

FINANCE INCOME
Our finance income mainly consists of interest income from bank deposits, finance income

on receivables under finance lease and exchange gain.

Finance income increased by | 1.8% from RMBI7 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to RMBI9 million for the year ended 31 December 2012, mainly as a result of

increase in bank saving interest.

FINANCE COSTS
Our finance costs primarily consist of interest payments for our loans granted by banks

and other financial institutions as well as finance charges on obligations under finance lease.

Finance costs increased by 65.4% from RMB127 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to RMB210 million for the year ended 31 December 2012, mainly as a result of

increase in bank borrowing.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Income tax expenses decreased by 6.8% from RMBI46 million for the year ended 31
December 201 | to RMBI36 million for the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily due

to decrease in profit before taxation.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to the equity shareholders of our Company
decreased by 7.3% from RMB83 | million for the year ended 31 December 201 | to
RMB770 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests decreased from RMB5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011 to a profit of RMBI million for the year ended 31 December
2012,
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

W AR R H e B R IR

Year ended 3| December

BZNA3NBLEEE

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Trade Receivables FEHAR K 623,906 447964
Bills receivable ERER 204,174 238519
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (38,999) (20,508)
Deposits and other receivables e R EmEEHE 530,586 363,256
1,319,667 1,029,231

Our trade and other receivables increased from RMBI,029 million as at 31 December
2011 to RMBI,320 million as at 31 December 2012, primarily due to the increase in
turnover and the fact that the number of our production facilities in operation increased

from 36 as at 31 December 2011 to 41 as at 3|1 December 2012.

Turnover of trade receivables increased from 33 days for the year ended 31 December
2011 to 39 days for the year ended 31 December 2012 which was in line with the

payment terms for our trade receivables due from on-site customers.

The following table sets forth the turnover of our trade receivables for the years indicated:

YRR R ECRKFIER20IIFI12A31R
MAREIL029BBTEE2012F 12431 B
AR 13208 - EHREERALEM - 1
FREERELENEERBH2011F12A
3 HA36ELMNE 20125 12 A3 BE 41 {8 »

EWEGR D AESREZ 2011 F12A3IBIEF
BHBREEEZ20NENAIBILEEER
39K BEURSHAREFAENMN A
o

TERIFIRFIREENERERNEERE :
Year ended 3| December

BZ1NA3NBLEE
2012 201 |

FEMCR KR8 (KRB *

Turover of trade receivables (days)*

39 33

Note:
* Calculated on the average of the beginning and ending trade receivables balances for the
year, divided by turnover for the year, multiplied by 360 days for a year in respect of the

years indicated.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis continued)
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BORROWINGS

Year ended 3| December

BENA3IALEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Short-term borrowings FRHE R 905,358 320,000
Current portion of long-term borrowings REERNEVERE 5 2,357,959 795,520
3,263,317 [,115520
Long-term portion of long-term borrowings REERHREEH 2,864,774 2,084,823
6,128,091 3,200,343

Certain bank loans of our Group are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of our Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If our Group were to breach the covenants the drawn down
loan balances would become payable on demand. At 31 December 2012, our Group
had breached certain financial covenants in respect of certain loans amounting to
RMB1,618,014,000, of which RMB1,060,841,000 were classified as current as our Group
had breached certain financial covenants at 31 December 2012. Subsequent to 31
December 2012, our Group received unconditional waivers from compliance with the

relevant financial covenants at 31 December 2012 from the lenders concerned.

The following table sets forth our borrowings at 31 December 2012 on an actual basis
and as adjusted at 31 December 2012 to give effect to formal unconditional waivers by

the lenders concerned of certain loans:
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
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Year ended 3| December

BENA3NBLEE

Actual  As adjusted Actual As adjusted
B RBEE B FER
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BFR ARETT
Short-term borrowings REER 905,358 905,358 320,000 320,000
Current portion of long-term borrowings REERNEVEREH 2,357,959 1,297,118 795,520 795,520
3,263,317 2,202,476 1,115,520 [,115520
Long-term portion of long-term borrowings REBERNRBHH 2,864,774 3,925,615 2,084,823 2,084,823
6,128,091 6,128,091 3,200,343 3,200,343
As at 31 December 2012, the carrying value of assets pledged to secure bank and other 72012 12 31 B » FiR1T M E 8 ZUK

loans was RMB2,467 million (201 1: RMB2,346 million).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
We have historically met our working capital and other capital requirements principally
from equity provided by our shareholders, cash generated from operations, cash at bank

and in hand and through short-term and long-term borrowings from banks.

MEEREBEAARE 24678 E (2011
£ AREIMFEET)

RBEERELFER
BMBEFEURRREHOBRAR - EERMEHN

Be - ®I7HF3
HEFaa

ARBEE RRBRTHER LK
N EEES REACEREX -

As at 31 December 2012, the total assets of our Group were approximately RMB14,793
million, representing an increase of RMB4,968 million from 31 December 201 |. The cash
at bank and in hand was RMB847 million, representing an decrease of RMBI | | million
from 31 December 201 |. The current ratio of our Group was 47.0%. The gearing ratio of

our Group which is calculated at total liabilities divided by total assets was 62.5%.

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying value of assets pledged to secure for borrowings
were RMB2,467 million (31 December 201 |: RMB2,346 million).

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis continued)
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditures principally comprise expenditures for the construction of new
production facilities and purchase of property, plant and equipment. The annual total
capital expenditure for 2012 was RMB3,782 million (201 1: RMB2,178 million), principally
comprised expenditures for the construction of new production facilities and purchase of
property, plant and equipment, which were financed by a combination of our internal cash

flows and bank borrowings.

INTERESTS

We have entered into an interest rate swap contract to achieve a targeted mix of fixed
and floating rate debts. In this interest rate swap contract, we principally receive interests
at floating rates based on London Interbank Offered Rate and pay interests at fixed rate.
The swap is designated as a cash flow hedge to hedge against changes in the interest rates

of our debt portfolio.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities of our Group and our Company are set out in notes

30(c) and 30(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS
Our Company aims to consolidate and further strengthen our position as the leading

domestic independent on-site industrial gas supplier in the PRC.
In order to achieve this, we intend to pursue the following strategies:

. capitalize on the outsourcing trend and consolidate and further strengthen our

leading position in the outsourcing on-site industrial gas market in China;

. “Go Deep” and “Go Wide" to develop our business and expand our business
network;

0 further enhance and expand our target markets through industry diversification;

J enhance our competitive strength in providing customized, unique and efficient

solutions to our customers through continuous innovation and research and

development; and

. continue to attract and retain highly skilled professionals.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY AND INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

Human resources and information technology have been essential to our Group's
success. Our staff is crucial assets of our Company. As such, we review our remuneration
policy and welfare from time to time to ensure it remains competitive. Our Company
has a balanced appraisal system to evaluate the staff's performance. For the long-term
development of all concerned, we provide relevant training to our staff, such as providing
financial supports to our staff for their further education and carrying out relevant trainings
for our management. We have operated a training and research centre in Hangzhou,

where our staff could acquire more knowledge on industry safety and technology.

As at 31 December 2012, our Group had 3,698 (31 December 201 I: 2,597) employees.
The increase in headcount was mainly a result of the commencement of production at 5
new production facilities in 2012 and the recruitment of talents for the development of

our Company.

We believe that our Company's strong growth and maturity is credited to the expertise
of our high-calibre staff and their full support to our Company's development strategy.
Our Company values every staff member, and therefore put forward a people-oriented
governance philosophy, endeavouring to provide our staff with an excellent working
environment and a sound promotion system, and to offer newly promoted staff
comprehensive on-the-job training, with a view to fostering a sense of belonging among
staff members and propping up their passion at work so that they may provide clients

with higher quality services.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (contined)
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EXCELLENT MANAGEMENT

Our senior management and senior technicians have extensive experience in the
operation of industrial gas enterprises, as well as industry knowledge and know-how,
thereby leading our Group's businesses to head towards greater success. In addition to
retaining management personnel, we also continue recruiting high-calibre technicians
and improving our operation systems and production technologies, in order to provide

customers with the best gas supply management solutions and other professional services.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors have proposed a final dividend of RMBO. |5 per share for the year ended 3|
December 2012 (201 1: RMBO. 13 per share).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Stakeholders

Our Group’s investor relations team is devoted to enable the most effective
communication between our Company, shareholders, the financial community and
other stakeholders. Our Company adheres to the best practices of high transparency
and consistency in the disclosure of information whether the market is favourable to the
industrial gas sector or otherwise. Our investor relations team has eamned the recognition
from shareholders, investors and analysts on our Group's integrity in continuing to
communicate our Company's strategies and performance at the earliest date in 2012,
Our Company's investor relations team frequently reported to management and relevant
departments on stakeholders’ comments and opinions so that we could keep improving
our efficiency and performance, with the ultimate goal of generating higher returns for our
shareholders. Communication between the stakeholders and our Company is a two-way

process. Our Company had made the following efforts in 2012:
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
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Providing updates to stakeholders through the following channels:

= announcements and notices published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, our Company's website, and/or dispatched to our shareholders pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules;

- our Company's financial reports;

= our annual and extraordinary general meeting, attended by top management

representatives and Directors; and

= investors conferences and meetings.

Encouraging feedback from stakeholders through channels such as:

= face-to-face dialogue at our annual and extraordinary general meeting;

= communication with stakeholders via email or telephone. Our Company also

replied email and telephone enquiries from stakeholders directly. If it was a matter

of general interest to stakeholders, we would seek to address it in subsequent

corporate communication to all stakeholders; and

- site visits. Our Company has organized a few site visits for the stakeholders to

inspect our production facilities across China in 2012.

Our Company collected and reported to the management team regularly about

stakeholders' comments and suggestions on our operations.

We are grateful to all stakeholders who offered us support and provided us with feedback
during 2012. If any stakeholder has questions or comments on our work, please contact

us at in@yingdegas.com.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis continued)
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PROSPECTS RE

With the introduction of various measures following the new leadership of the Chinese 013F  FREERTBTEEI T LTH#
government, the Chinese economy has showed a sign of recovery and is set to record HZIEEmE MR R R R - slEE
faster growth in 2013, which will benefit the manufacturing industry. With more facilities NeRBER AEERKRFEEREZRER
scheduled to be put into operation in the coming year, our Group will further expand B E—SBAEBRERINBTISNE - K
its business presence and share of the outsourcing market. Our Group will endeavour to EEVTFHERETER  TRBBEERTESEY
secure suitable, good customers in the market in order to maintain its leading position in EEERAENEPIRBETEANSEED

the industry while continuing to consolidate its business. AT o

Pursuing the above goals, we will strive for outstanding performance in 2013 and FELHAR  RNEERWIB3FENFRES
reciprocate our shareholders with admirable return. BRE - ARTER O R e EARE -
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
SEENEGREEEGRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN

Mr. Zhongguo Sun, aged 49, was initially appointed as the chairman, chief executive
officer and an executive director of our Company on 12 November 2007 and was
subsequently re-elected as a director of our Company on 19 May 2010. Mr. Sun was one
of the founders of our Group and has been a director and the general manager of our
Group since 2001. Mr. Sun is responsible for the overall management and strategy of our
Group. Mr. Sun has more than ten years experience in the industrial gas industry. Prior
to establishing our Group, Mr. Sun was the business manager of applied gas solution at
BOC Group Plc,. Mr. Sun received a Master of Science in Mechanical Engineering from the

University of Pittsburgh in 1989.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Xiangti, aged 54, was initially appointed as an executive director of our
Company on 12 November 2007 and was subsequently re-elected as a director of our
Company on 15 June 2012. Mr. Zhao was one of the founders of our Group and has
participated in our management, business development and expansion since October
2001. Mr. Zhao is responsible for domestic finance planning and support in the PRC
within our Group. Mr. Zhao has vyears of experience in the industrial gas industry. Mr.
Zhao received a Bachelor of Engineering from Hebei Science and Technology University
in 1982.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt, aged 61, was appointed as an executive director of our
Company on 20 May 2010 and was subsequently re-elected as a director of our Company
on 26 May 201 1. He is also the chief operating officer of our Company. Mr. Strutt was
one of the founders of our Group and has been the deputy general manager responsible
for the overall operational aspects of our Group since establishment. Mr. Strutt has more
than 20 years experience in the industrial gas industry. Prior to establishing our Group,
he held various positions at BOC Group Plc,. Mr. Strutt received a Bachelor of Science
with Honors in Materials Science from the University of Sussex in 1975 and a Master of
Business Administration from the University of Leeds in 2001. Mr. Strutt is a member of
the Institute of Materials, Minerals and Mining, and is a registered member of the United

Kingdom Engineering Council — Chartered Engineer.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management ccontinued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Zhao, aged 44, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive director
of our Company on 12 September 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as a director of
our Company on 15 June 2012. Mr. Xu is currently the chairman of Cathay Life Insurance
Company Limited, which is a joint venture in the PRC between China Eastern Air Holding
Company and Cathay Life Insurance Company Limited, a publicly listed company in
Taiwan. Mr. Xu is also currently the chief financial officer of China Eastern Air Holding
Company and a director of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited, a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu has more than
ten years experience in the accounting and finance areas. Mr. Xu received a Bachelor
degree in Molding from Chongging University in 1991 and a Master degree in Professional
Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2005. Mr. Xu is a certified
public accountant in the PRC.

Mr. Zheng Fuya, aged 46, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company on 12 September 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as a
director of our Company on 26 May 201 1. Mr. Zheng was a director of Cogo Group,
Inc, a company listed on the NASDAQ and has since | January 2008 served as the chief
financial officer of the same company. Mr. Zheng was previously vice president of travel
service at elong, Inc, one of the leading online travel service companies in China and
listed on the NASDAQ, where Mr. Zheng was responsible for the overall operation of
elong Inc's travel services. Mr. Zheng has more than ten years experience in the service
industry. Mr. Zheng received a Bachelor of Business Administration majoring in accounting

from City University of New York in 1994.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. Wang Ching, aged 58, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company on 4 December 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as a
director of our Company on |5 June 2012. Dr. Wang has more than 20 years of working
experience in global financial industry specialising in asset management, direct investment,
corporate finance, equity and fixed income trading/sales with particular focus in the U.S.
and the Greater China region. Dr. Wang is currently the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd,, a licensed corporation registered with
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission(HKSFC), the executive director of
Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited, an investment fund company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange(HKEX Stock Code: 770.HK). He also serves as
independent non-executive directors for several HKEX listed firms, in which he advises the
top management on business strategies, financial development and internal control. Dr.
Wang had served as the CEO of the Investment & Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun
Financial Holding CO,, Ltd. in Taiwan, Chairman of FENB Securities, Inc. in U.S., Managing
Director of SinoPac Securities (Asia) Hong Kong, Managing Director of ]S Cresvale
International Securities, Director of Investment Banking of Standard Chartered Bank in
Hong Kong, and Associate Director of Bear Steams & Co., Inc. in New York. Dr. Wang

received his Ph.D. in Finance from Columbia University in New York.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management ccontinued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Zhongguo Sun - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

“Executive Director and Chairman”.

Mr. Zhao Xiangti - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed - “Executive

Directors”.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

“Executive Directors'.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing, aged 34, joined our Group on | July 2008 and is chief financial
officer and company secretary of our Group. Ms. Wong has over ten years of accounting
experience in the industrial sector. Prior to joining our Company, Ms. Wong was the
group chief financial officer of Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holdings
Limited, an investment holding company with subsidiaries engaging in media business
in the PRC. She was previously employed as the financial controller of Avex China
Company Limited, a PRC joint venture company established by Orange Sky Entertainment
(International) Holdings Limited and Avex Group Holdings Inc., which is a company listed
on the Tokyo Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was also previously employed as a manager at
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor of Business Administration from
the University of Hong Kong. She received her EMBA from China Europe International
Business School. Ms. Wong became a chartered member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2003.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Wong Sze Wing - please refer to her biography under the sub-section headed - “Senior

Management”.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWME

The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of our Company and of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Our Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong is at Room 3212-13, 32/F,
Tower Two, Times Square, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong and has its registered office at

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY -1 111, Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
Based on the research information in the SAI Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier specializing in on-site gas supply in China in terms of

total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012.

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site and
merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen, nitrogen and
argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those whose premises are
located on or in close proximity to our gas production facilities and to whom we supply
industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers are generally liquid gas distributors who

purchase industrial gases from us on a spot market basis from time to time.

The analysis of our Group's turnover is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 57.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
Our Directors have proposed a final dividend of RMBO.15 per share for the year ended
31 December 2012 (201 I: RMBO.13).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group is

set out on page |68.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of our Group and our Company during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 28(a) to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Our Company's total distributable reserves at 31 December 2012 amounted to

RMB2,381 million (201 I: RMB2,709 million).

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in the share capital of our Company during the year ended 31 December

2012 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in our Group's property, plant and equipment are set out in note || to the

consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND CAPITALIZATION OF INTERESTS

Details of borrowings of our Group during the year are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of our Group's capitalized interests expenses
and other borrowing costs during the year are set out in note 5(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Details of the retirement benefit plans of our Group are set out in note 5(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF OUR COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES
During the year under review, neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of our Company's listed securities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by a resolution of the shareholders
on 12 September 2009 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on 12 September 2009.
Unless it is terminated by the Board or our shareholders in general meeting in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years on the date which it becomes unconditional.
After the period, no further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to exercise any subsisting
options granted prior to the expiry of this ten year period or otherwise as handled in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme. The amount payable by
a participant upon acceptance of a grant of option is RMBI.00. The Board may, at its
absolute discretion, offer any employee, management member or Director, or any of our
subsidiaries and third party service providers the options to subscribe for shares on the
terms set out in the Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize them to remain with
us and to give effect to our customer-focused corporate culture, and to motivate them to
strive for our future development and expansion, by providing them with the opportunity

to acquire equity interests in our Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued shares as at the

date of approval of the Share Options Scheme (ie. a total of 180,923,250 shares).
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No option may be granted to any one person such that the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of options granted and to be granted to that person
inany 12 month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of our issued share

capital from time to time, unless the approval of our shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable for each share to be subscribed for under an option upon exercise
shall be determined by the Board and notified to a proposed beneficiary at the time of
offer of the option and shall be not less than the higher of:

(@)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily

quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a Business Day;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet for the five Business Days immediately preceding the date of

grant; and
()  the nominal value of the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme does not contain any minimum period(s) for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised. However, at the time of grant of the options, our

Company may specify any such minimum period(s).

As at 31 December 2012, no options have been granted pursuant to the Share Option

Scheme.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhongguo Sun (chairman and chief executive officer,
re-elected/appointed on 19 May 2010)

Mr. Zhao Xiangti (re-elected/appointed on |5 June 2012)

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt (re-elected/appointed on 26 May 201 1)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Zhao (re-elected/appointed on 19 May 2010)

Mr. Zheng Fuya (re-elected/appointed on 26 May 201 1)

Dr. Wang Ching (re-elected/appointed on |5 June 2012)

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhongguo Sun and Mr.

Xu Zhao shall retire by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election

at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 22 to 24.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with our Company or any member of our
Company which is not determinable by our Company within one year without the

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance in relation to our Group's business to which our Company, any
of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

financial year or at any time during the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was our Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, our Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of our

Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF OUR
COMPANY AND OUR ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of our Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our
Company and our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be entered in the register kept by our Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to our Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules contained in Appendix 10

were as follows:

EERETHRAERARARARHEAH
TERRG  HERORESFNERR
KB

R212F12A318 ARRIEZRE&THR
ABRARA REAEEZE(EER(ESFRE
BEBIDEXVE) ARG - BERG REHT
BERTBERARAIRBES RPERINE
EBFEELM - kR E WA AR 8
THEZEETUEANGRRARREBMIM
HERRABIT :

Approximate

percentage
Name Nature of interest Number of Shares of shareholding
a8 BENE FRERROHE FRENEI L
(Note)
(&)
Mr. Zhongguo Sun Beneficiary of a trust 334,200,000 (long position) 18.50%
Zhongguo SunsE 4 ErEXEmA 334,2000008% (F&)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti Deemed interest, 253,129,585 (long position)
IR AL interest of controlled company

BIEHERER (B ARER)
Beneficial owner

BEXHAA

253,129,5850% (#F&)
892,000 (long position)
892,0008% (4F&)

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt Founder of a discretionary trust
Trevor Raymond Struttft 4 2REFFTHIKILA

Note: There were 1,806,830,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2012.

254,021,585 (long position) 14.06%
254,021,5850% ({7 &)
183,352,961 (long position) 10.15%
183352961 1% (472)
WizE: B Z=2002F 128318 B%771806830000
ARARAR °

Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 December 2012, none of the Directors and the chief B EXFTHEESN - R2012F 128318 &

executive of our Company or their associates (including their spouses and children under
I8 years of age) had any interest or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of our Company or our associated corporations, recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to our
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
OUR COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, to the best knowledge and behalf of the Director, the following

FERRREMATRRG REBER G
MEZRKXR

R2NENAIB REEHMAMRKE
F THALT(RARBNEERESTHRAL
BRINEBBREB(EHFRBERPNDEXVEHE

persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of our Company) had interests

or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company which fall to be

disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 pursuant to Section

336 of Part XV of the SFO as follows:

336 18 2 B3N B IR AR R R RBEH A DA
B SRR ERIARIT -

Approximate

Number of percentage

Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding

= BEREE FrEERGOEE BERBNEDL

(Note)

(BEE)

Baslow Technology Limited Beneficial owner 183,352,961 (long position) 10.15%
BExSBEAA 18335296 18 (4FA)

Baslow Resources Limited Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 183,352,961 (long position) 10.15%
BEEAER (BHDRER) 183,352,9610% (4F2)

Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 334,200,000 (long position) 18.50%
BExEBA 334,200,000 (4F&)

Li Hongmei Founder of a discretionary trust 334,200,000 (long position) 18.50%
FHUK EX AR NAVIN 334,2000008% (4F%&)

Yang Yonggang Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 261,129,585 (long position)
oKl RIEGEAED (6 DrER) 261,129,550 (#F8)
Beneficial owner 892,000 (long position)

BExHAA 892,0008% (4F2)

262,021,585 (long position) 14.50%
262,021,585/ (48)

Rongton Investments Limited ~ Beneficial owner 261,129,585 (long position) 14.43%

REREARAT

BEaHAA

261,129,5850% (#F&)
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Approximate
Number of percentage
Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding
=L BEME FrEERGOEE BRENEITL
(Note)
(F&E)
Equity Trustee Limited Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 517,552,961 (long position) 28.64%
RFEA (BBEFEARIN 517,552961 % (&)
Rouser Investments Inc. Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 334,200,000 (long position) 18.50%
HIFHAER (RHARES) 3342000008 (4F%8)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner 1,831,845 (long position)
BExsBAA 1831,8450% (472)
Investment manager 30,979,000 (long position)
REEE 30979,000 & (§78)
Custodian corporation/ approved lending agent 93951,719 (long position)
RENEB/ GAERDREA 939517198 (4F2)
126,762,564 (long position) 7.02%
126,762,564 B (47 %)
Custodian corporation/ approved lending agent 93,951,719 (lending pool) 5.20%
RENEE/AGHREA 93951,719 &
(AT fE AR AD)
Prudential Plc Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 91,081,500 (long position) 5.04%
HIERERRED (5 ARES) 91,081,5008% (472)
Aberdeen Asset Investment manager 145,038,000 (long position) 8.03%
Management Plc and KEKE 145,038,0008% (478)

its Associates (together
“The Aberdeen Group”)
on behalf of Accounts
managed by the
Aberdeen Group

Note: There were [,806,830,000 shares in issue as at 3|1 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at 3| December 2012, our Company were not aware of
any person (other than the Directors and chief executive of our Company) who had
an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by our Company under Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of our
Company and there is no restriction against such rights which would oblige our Company

to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors have any ownership in other businesses which competes or is likely

to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of our Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of our Company were entered into or existed during the

year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Our Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive Directors and
our Company considers that Mr. Xu Zhao, Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching to be

independent.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2012, our Group had a total of 3,698 employees (2011: 2,597
employees). Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) incurred for the year
ended 31 December 2012 amounted to approximately RMB226 million (201 1: RMBI76
million). Remuneration packages of the Directors are recommended by the remuneration
committee and approved by the Board. Employee remuneration will be determined by
the management with reference to individual performance and experience and industry

practice.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 3| December
2012.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

As we obtain our major raw material, air, at no cost, electricity, which comprises over
60% of our total cost of sales, is therefore the largest item of our total purchases. As we
normally secure our electricity supply for our on-site gas operations through contractual
arrangements with our on-site customers, our current five largest suppliers are all our on-
site customers. We generally obtain electricity from our on-site customers at the market
rate set by state-owned electricity grid companies. Electricity is usually supplied to our on-
site customers by local electricity companies which are state-owned enterprises. As we
generally collect our receivables from our on-site customers and make payment to on-site
customers for our electricity usage at or around the same time, their payments to us are
generally netted off to take into account our electricity expenses to our on-site customers.
Our five largest suppliers together accounted for approximately 55.4% (201 1: 62.6%)
of the total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2012. For the year ended 3|
December 2012, our largest supplier accounted for approximately 18.3% (201 1: 19.7%) of

our total purchases.

Our five largest customers together accounted for approximately 52.19% (201 1: 57.0%)
of our total revenues for the year ended 31 December 2012. For the year ended 3|
December 2012, our largest customer accounted for approximately 17.19% (2011: 18.0%)

of our total tumover.

As far as our Company is aware, neither the Directors, their associates, nor those
substantial shareholders who are interested in more than 5% of the Shares or underlying
Shares of our Company had any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers of our

Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The following continuing connected transactions of our Company are subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirements under

Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.
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BACKGROUND

On 28 November 2008, our Group entered into a joint venture agreement with
Hengyang Valin to establish a joint venture with industrial gas supply company, Hengyang
Yingde, in Hengyang city, Hunan province in the PRC. As we own 70% interest in
Hengyang Yingde and have the right to appoint two out of three members of its board
of directors, we have control of Hengyang Yingde. Therefore, our Company accounts for
Hengyang Yingde as our subsidiary. Hengyang Valin owns the remaining 30% interest in
Hengyang Yingde.

As Hengyang Valin is a substantial shareholder of our Company's subsidiary, Hengyang
Valin is a connected person of our Company pursuant to Rule 14A.11(1) of the Listing
Rules. Therefore, any transaction between our Group and Hengyang Valin (including its
associates) are connected transactions of our Company pursuant to Rule 14A.13(1)(a)
of the Listing Rules which will be subject to the requirements under Chapter [4A of the
Listing Rules.

DESCRIPTION OF THE TRANSACTIONS

Hengyang Gas Supply Contract

On 28 November 2008, Yingde BVI (on behalf of Hengyang Yingde) entered into a gas
supply contract with Hengyang Valin, or the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract, pursuant to
which Yingde BVI agreed to transfer the benefits and obligations under the Hengyang Gas
Supply Contract to Hengyang Yingde upon its establishment, and Hengyang Yingde would
supply and Hengyang Valin would purchase a specified minimum volume of industrial
gases. The industrial gases supplied to Hengyang Valin by Hengyang Yingde include
oxygen, nitrogen and argon which are the major industrial gas products offered by our
Company. The duration of the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract is 20 years. The end date
of the gas supply contract is 30 October 2029. Under the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract,
Hengyang Valin is required to provide utilities (such as electricity) to Hengyang Yingde for
its gas production facilities located on the site of Hengyang Valin. Hengyang Yingde would
in turn be required to pay Hengyang Valin for those costs of gas production, such as the

utility costs and rents for occupation of the site.
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Gas Supply Transactions and Supply-related Transactions

The gas supply transactions from Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin are referred to
as the Gas Supply Transactions. The basis of pricing of the Gas Supply Transactions was
reached between our Group and Hengyang Valin through arm’s length negotiations
taking into account factors including the price offered by competitors, our Company's
investment in capital expenditure, the costs of gas production (including the costs charged
by Hengyang Valin for the Supply-related Transactions described below), reputation and
quality of Hengyang Valin, and the likely returmn to the shareholders of our Company. In
connection with the Gas Supply Transactions, our Group will enter into certain related
transactions with Hengyang Valin. These transactions involve payment of expenses
(including but not limited to electricity expense, steam expense and rental expense) from
Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin under the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract, or the
Supply-related Transactions. The basis of pricing of the Supply-related Transactions was
reached between our Company and Hengyang Valin through arm’s length negotiations
taking into account factors including the price charged by the local utility companies and

the rentals charged by landlords of adjacent properties.

Transaction Amounts for the Year Ended 3| December 2012

Prior to the commencement of gas supplies by Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin in
April 2009, there were no transactions between our Group and Hengyang Valin. The
amount for the Gas Supply Transactions for the year ended 3| December 2012 was
approximately RMB83 million (201 : RMB87 million), which represented the on-site sales
revenue of Hengyang Yingde. The amount for the Supply-related Transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2012 of gas supply by Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin was
approximately RMB39 million (201 1: RMBS | million), which represented the electricity

and water expenses of Hengyang Yingde.

The annual cap set for the total Supply-related Transactions for the year ended 3|
December 2012 was RMB65 million (201 I: RMB65 million). The actual aggregate amount
Supply-related Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB39 million
(201'1: RMB5 | million).

The annual cap set for the total Gas Supply Transactions for the year ended 3| December
2012 was RMBI 10 million (2011: RMBI 10 million). The actual aggregate amount Gas
Supply Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB83 million (201 I:
RMB87 million).
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In respect of the above continuing connected transactions, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
has granted a waiver to our Company from strict compliance with the disclosure or where
appropriate, the shareholders’ approval requirements stipulated in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules subject to certain conditions.

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected

transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:
() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of our Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms; and

(3)  in accordance with the relevant agreements entered into on terms which are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of our Company as a

whole.

The Board has received a letter from the auditors of the Company stating that the

continuing connected transactions:

. have received the approval of the Board;

. were in accordance with the pricing policy as stated on page 38 of this annual
report

0 have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the

continuing connected transactions; and

. have not exceeded the annual cap amounts as set out above for the year ended 3|
December 2012.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited (“Bubbly Brooke”), a substantial

shareholder of our Company, and Mr. Zhongguo Sun, a director of our Company

() Cash advances to Bubbly Brooke

During the year ended 31 December 2012, our Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Ace Turbo Group Limited, advanced cash of RMB38 million and RMB73
million approximately to Bubbly Brooke on |9 September 2012 and 25 October
2012, respectively. Bubbly Brooke is a substantial shareholder of our Company.

It is also an associate of our Director Mr. Zhongguo Sun by virtue of being an
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investment holding company wholly-owned by a trustee with Mr. Zhongguo Sun
being a trust beneficiary. Accordingly, Bubbly Brooke is a connected person of
our Company as defined under Rule 14A.1'| of the Listing Rules and the advances
described above constituted connected transactions of our Company under
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. The maximum balance outstanding during
2012 was RMB73,216,000 (201 1: Nil). The amounts were bearing interest of
RMB549,859 in total at 5% per annum and fully repaid in 2012.

Cash advances from Bubbly Brooke and Mr. Zhongguo Sun

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Bubbly Brooke advanced certain cash
to our Group. The maximum balance outstanding during 2012 was RMB66, 172,000
(20112 Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 201 I, Mr. Zhongguo Sun advanced certain cash
to our Group. The maximum balance outstanding during 201 | was RMB27,700,000.
There was no cash advance from Mr. Zhongguo Sun during the year ended 31
December 2012.

The outstanding balances with Bubbly Brooke and Mr. Zhongguo Sun at 31

December are as follows:

JE 1 Bubbly Brooke 538
JEfS Zhongguo Sun 4R

Amount due to Bubbly Brooke
Bonus payable to Mr. Zhongguo Sun

The Directors conducted review of related party transactions of the Group during
the year under review and were not aware of any other transactions which were
required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules saved

as those transactions already disclosed by our Company.
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SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information that is publicly available to
our Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, our Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of more than 25% of our Company's issued Shares as required under

the Listing Rules during the year.

OTHER REQUIRED DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 AND RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Our Company entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks on 4 March
2011 (the “2011 Facility Agreement”) for a 3-year term loan facility of up to USD150
million. Pursuant to the 201 | Facility Agreement, it will be an event triggering mandatory
prepayment, inter alia, if: (a) any one or more of Peace & Smooth (Hong Kong)
Investment Limited, Rongton, Baslow and Bubbly Brooke solely (where there is only one
controlling shareholder) or jointly (where there is more than one controlling shareholder)
cease to control the Company or cease to own legally and beneficially directly or
indirectly through wholly owned subsidiaries 35% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company; or (b) either of Baslow and Bubbly Brooke ceases to own legally and
beneficially directly or indirectly through wholly owned subsidiaries any issued share capital

of the Company.

Our Company further entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks on
16 April 2012 (the “2012 Facility Agreement”) for a 3-year term loan facility of up to
USD 150 million. Pursuant to the 2012 Facility Agreement, it will be an event triggering
mandatory prepayment, inter alia, if: (2) any one or more of Peace & Smooth (Hong
Kong) Investment Limited, Rongton, Baslow and Bubbly Brooke, jointly cease to control
the Company or cease to own legally and beneficially directly or indirectly through wholly
owned subsidiaries 35% or more of the issued share capital of the Company; (b) either of
Baslow and Bubbly Brooke sells more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company
that it owned as at 16 April 2012; or (c) Mr. Zhongguo Sun ceases to be the chief
executive officer or the chairman of the Company, or Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt ceases

to be the chief operating officer of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
Our Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code™) as the code

of conduct regarding the securities transactions by the Directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all Directors, that all
Directors have fully complied with standards required according to the Model Code

during the year ended 3| December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Our Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance practices.
Corporate governance practices adopted by our Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 43 to 54.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Our Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee™) comprising
all three existing independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu Zhao (Chairman of

the Audit Committee), Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012, and is of the view that our Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 are prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standard, laws and regulations, and appropriate disclosures have

already been made.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of our Group for the year ended 3| December
2012 have been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants. A resolution for their re-
appointment as auditors of our Company for the ensuring year will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Zhongguo Sun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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The Board of Directors of the Company is committed to achieving high standard of
corporate governance to ensure effective and responsible leadership for the Company

and the protection of shareholders' interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2012, our Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) except for the deviation from the code provision A2.1 of the Code which
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be segregated.
As at the date of this annual report, the chairman and the chief executive officer of our
Company is Mr. Zhongguo Sun. However, the Board considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and the authority of the Board. The Board currently
comprises of three executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors,
with independent non-executive Directors representing 50% of the Board, which is higher
than the requirements under the Listing Rules. Such a high percentage of independent
non-executive Directors on the Board can ensure that their views carry significant weight

and reflects the independence of the Board.

Mr. Sun was one of the main founders of our Group. He has been responsible for
operational management since the establishment of our Group. He has played an
important role during our expansion. Mr. Sun possesses rich working experience in the
industrial gas industry business and excellent operational management ability. At present,
the Board believes that it is beneficial to the management and development of our
Group's businesses for Mr. Sun to be both the chairman and chief executive officer as it
helps to fasten the Board's decision-making. The Board would still consider segregating the

role of chairman and chief executive officer to comply with the Code if appropriate.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Our Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding the

securities transactions by the Directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all Directors, that all
Directors have fully complied with standards required according to the Model Code

during the year ended 3| December 2012.

Independent Non-executive Director

For the year ended 3| December 2012, the Board at all times met Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

Our Company has received annual confirmations from each of the three independent
non-executive Directors in respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Our Company considers that all existing independent non-executive
Directors are independent parties in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules and are free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the

exercise of their independent judgements.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for achieving the corporate goals, formulating the development
strategy, regularly reviewing the organizational structure, and monitoring the business
activities and the performance of management so as to protect and maximize the interests
of our Company and our shareholders. Matters relating to the daily operations of our
Group are delegated to the management. During the year, the Board considered and
approved the annual budget and its performance under management supervision together
with the business reports from the management. The Board also reviewed and approved
the final results for the year ended 31 December 2012 and other critical business
operations. The Board also assessed the internal control and the financial matters of our

Group.

Board Composition

The Board currently consists of six members, including;

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhongguo Sun (chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Zhao

Mr. Zheng Fuya

Dr. Wang Ching

Mr. Zhongguo Sun and Mr. Xu Zhao being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election

at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The members of the Board represent a diverse and rich industry background with
appropriate professional qualifications. Please refer to the section headed “Biographies of

Directors and Senior Management” for the profiles of our Directors.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among members of the Board. Board members are free to

exercise their independent judgment.

Under code provision A4.| of the Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Our three independent non-executive directors are each appointed for a term of three

years, subject to re-election when appropriate by our Company in general meeting.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board Committee meetings
and the general meeting of our Company held during the year ended 31 December 2012

is set out in the table below:
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Notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors at least 14 days before the

meetings. For other Board committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given,

The agendas and accompanying Board papers were given to all Directors in a timely
manner. All Directors are properly discussed on issues arising at Board meetings by the

chairman.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information with the advice of
the company secretary, to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Upon making request to the Board, all Directors may obtain
independent professional advice at our Company's expense for carrying out their

functions.

The company secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the chairman and the
chief executive on governance matters, facilitating induction and professional development
of Director, and taking and keeping minutes of all Board committee meetings. Draft and
final versions of minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comment within a

reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

Training for Directors

For each newly appointed Director, he/she will be provided with an induction course so
as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of our Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations

under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional
development to Directors whenever necessary. To assist their continuous professional
development, the company secretary recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars

and courses.

EZ TR BANARGRRTH
AAEEREZHML - ﬂ%ﬁ@%%é
& REBHAEREA -

ZENIBEEE N e RRREBERY
B TFenEseeR tRINEERZE
EEEEERR o

RERETEZSRFRMAERRAILSE
T-MBEFHULARKERNMEREE
B TAERRREREER - MESERN
EXR& - MEESHARETEBRBEREY
HXER  BRAMARAKE -

ARAMEABBBIRRTRARNES SR
HERAZENHER  THEZHABRIIR
EXER URCBRIREEZZECMAS
NG R - SRLEIRBEEER KRN
QE?% FEREAEBHARREEHRHER

RERAHESER -

4

CIESY
= PN
HEE

/

/

=
=

E

B3
EREMHESREZEHMERAARRE -
NEREEE TRARRNEHEREENRSE
ERNEERE EMRAREREEREARETT
HRE RE -

PLERTAESREFEGEREXEREY
B RABERNHEZERR  ARWER
BEZ2MAAMAELRE -

Annual Report 2012 £ # a



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
_I/J__\% /I:l -AF& (na)

As a part of our training program for the Board, all Directors were provided with reports
from time to time the latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime during the year under review. A
number of reading materials were also provided to all Directors to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills. In the future, our Company will continue to organize
various training and seminars for the Directors on the professional knowledge and latest

development of regulatory requirements related to director's duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity
Our Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify our Directors
and senior officers for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended

31 December 2012, no claim has been made against our Directors and senior officers.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the compliance committee
(collectively the “Board Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of our Company's

affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstances, at our Company's expense.
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Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee on |2 September 2009, with the written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It is chaired by Mr. Xu Zhao and
comprises two other members, namely Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching, all of whom

are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditors, review the financial statements,
oversee and provide material advice in respect our financial reporting system and oversee

the internal control procedures of our Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee together with the management has
reviewed, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
the Group's internal control and financial reporting matters, including review of the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 201 and the interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2012, with recommendation to the Board for approval. The
Audit Committee has also recommended to the Board that, subject to our shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, KPMG, be re-appointed as the

external auditors of our Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board established the remuneration committee on |2 September 2009, with the
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year under
review, Dr. Wang Ching was the chairman of the remuneration committee and Mr. Xu
Zhao and Mr. Zheng Fuya were the other two members of the remuneration committee,

all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the remuneration committee are to evaluate the performance
and make recommendations on the remuneration package of our Directors and senior
management, our retirement scheme and our performance assessment system and bonus

and commission policies.

The remuneration of Directors are based on their skills, knowledge, involvement in our
Company's affairs and the performance, together with reference to the profitability of our

Company, remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and prevailing market conditions.
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No Director or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection with his
or her own remuneration. The remuneration committee may also consult the chairman
about their proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive Directors and has
access to professional advice if necessary. The major objective of the remuneration policy
is to ensure that our Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high caliber team

which is essential to the success of our Company.

During the vear under review, the remuneration committee reviewed, amongst others,

the performance and remuneration policy of the executive Directors.

Nomination Committee
The Board established the nomination committee on |2 September 2009, with the
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It is chaired by Mr. Zheng

Fuya and comprises two other members, namely Mr. Xu Zhao and Mr. Zhao Xiangti.

The primary functions of the nomination committee are to make recommendations to

our Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on our Board.

The duties of the nomination committee also includes reviewing the structure, number
and composition of the Board; submitting proposals to the Board on the appointment of
chief executive officer; reviewing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and submitting proposals to the Board. The authority and duties of the

nomination committee are clearly sets out in its terms of reference.

During the year under review, the nomination committee recommended to the Board
the matters concerning the re-election of Directors by shareholders pursuant to the
Articles of Association having due regard to their performance and ability to continue
to contribute to the Board. The Nomination Committee also reviewed the structure,
number and composition of the Board and the independence of the independent non-

executive Directors.

Compliance Committee

The Board established the compliance committee on 12 September 2009 with the written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It is chaired by Mr. Zhongguo Sun
and comprises two other members, namely Mr. Zhao Xiangti and Mr. Zheng Fuya. The
primary functions of the compliance committee are to ensure compliance on regulatory

matters and corporate governance.
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The work performed by the compliance committee during the year under review included
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system and making
recommendation to the Board for improvement of internal control, credit control and risk
management. In addition, the compliance committee reviewed our Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, our Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance by the Directors of the Model
Code and our Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the consolidated financial statements of the annual and
interim reports. When the Directors were aware of material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon our Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, such uncertainties would be clearly and prominently set out

and discussed in detail in this Corporate Governance Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal controls of our Group are designed to help our Group protect its assets and
information. The presence of internal controls empowers our Group to implement best
business practices in challenging business environments. Our Group's internal controls
cover a number of in-house procedures and policies. The system comprises, among
others, the relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management

procedures.

The Board is responsible for our Group's system of internal control and its effectiveness. It
has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by our Group, including strategic planning, corporate governance, financial
reporting, core business processes, and compliance and risk management. Our Group
has conducted a high level review on the significant risks faced by our Group and the

effectiveness of the internal control system for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Board is not aware of any significant internal control weaknesses nor significant breach

of limits or risk management policies.

@Wi%Ahﬁ@
%*éﬁ?é@ﬁ%%$ Tmmiﬁﬁﬁ
RER REENSREEABNEINNSE
EXRRE  ARFERTARREERESA
MRERES EFETRETROER X

AlETTRNBERRELRE GREANK
=

BE
ESHNRREEEANFRETHRENAH
HBBRRFREFTEST BRI RABH
AHE - HEEHNEBEEATAREHHERA
REREXEALARNELERN  MARR
CEERBRETEERELFATRLETH
BRE -

PR
AEENABEREAEPAEKBRELEER

BH e ARERSARBEETRABNERE
RETERSENEEER - AEBENREE
EREZ ENBREF RIRE - %5 &2 HE 18
M BERAKAER  UNEREERF o

EXeRAEEARENARERAR LA
B e AREIDHIRTARERR - FHERER
AEEMEY EARBNER  BREEER

g DERE - MBWS ERSHAEEM
BRER - ARBELHAEEMERNEX
RBRETTSBAERTETAERN THE
WRENAIBLEFEARBEEZANEXN
o

EFQVEEREANREZRBIERNER
PR bl sk R e B IR BUR OB T -

Annual Report 2012 £ # Q



Corporate Governance Report continued)
TEERRE®

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Our Group's independent auditors is KPMG. KPMG is responsible for auditing and forming

an independent opinion on our Group's annual consolidated financial statements.

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to our Company’s

auditors, KPMG, are as follows:

BULHEME
AEENBIGBMAEFR S EBA -
ERAEHMEBMARERAREFEAH
HHHRRMERBUEE -

EOEFRN  ENRENARERBMESE
ERES Gk

Year ended 3| December

BZNA3IBLEE

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRL ARETR

Audit service (including annual ERRG(ARFEEERZMN
audit and interim review) R HIE IR ) 4,647 4,298
Non-audit service FEZIRT 690 71
5,337 4,369

Non-audit service includes tax service.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Wong Sze Wing is our Company's company secretary and has taken no less than 15

hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 3| December 2012.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders' interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual Directors, for shareholders' consideration and voting.

Resolutions put forward at our shareholders” meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of our Company and of

the Stock Exchange after each shareholders” meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of our Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meetings (the “EGM™) may be convened by the Board on requisition of
one or more shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of our Company.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such EGM the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) concerned
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)

concerned by the Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the requisition, sign the
requisition and deposit the same to the Board or the company secretary or the

primary contact person of our Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at the
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision) or
the Articles of Association of our Company. However, shareholders who wish to
put forward proposals at general meetings may achieve so by means of convening
an extraordinary general meeting following the procedures set out in paragraph (i)

above.

As regards the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

Director, they are available on our Company's website (www.yingdegas.com).

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written

enquires to our Company.

Note: Our Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquires.

(if)

(iii)
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Primary Contact Person
Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions or enquiries as mentioned

in (i), (i) and (iii) above to the primary contact person of our Company as set out below:

Name: Ms. Wong Sze Wing

Address:  Room 3212-13, 32/F Tower Two, Times Square,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Fax: 852-3100 0069

Email: huangsiying@yingdegas.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address, and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give

effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year under review, our Company made no changes to the Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of our Company's Articles of Association is available

on our Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Further information about investor relations are set out on page 19.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of our Group and ensure that financial statements are in accordance with

statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon our Company's ability to

continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR S

epnsc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yingde Gases Group Company
Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 57
to 167, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 3| December 2012, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Interational Financial
Reporting Standards promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
aftEe s

for the year ended 3| December 2012

HZ0NFNANALEE

2012 2011
Note RMB'000 RMB000
Wt AR®TR ARBTT

Turnover A 4 4,955,933 4,240,275
Cost of sales HE KR (3,382,812)  (2789,384)
Gross profit E5 1,573,121 1,450,891
Other revenue and net income s RAARA 20,231 10,835
Selling expenses HEER (181,262) (131,844)
Administrative expenses EEEH (310,373) (238,562)
Profit from operations Reha 1,101,717 1,091,320
Finance income FBRA 5(a) 18,961 17,055
Finance costs TS RAR 5(a) (209,811) (126,684)
Share of results of associates JEIEME AR R (3,459) (244)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities BEEERRER (279) -
Profit before taxation BRBLAT R 5 907,129 981,447
Income tax PrEH 6 (135,844) (145,800)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year XEFBRGENERE 771,285 835,647
Attributable to: UT&HELR:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAIERFAA 9 770,117 830819
Non-controlling interests JEFERR AR R A 2R l,168 4,828
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year AENBRGENERE 771,285 835,647
Earnings per share (RMB) BREF(AR%T) 10

Basic E2YIN 0.426 0460

Diluted e 0.426 0.460

The notes on pages 65 to |67 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends F6SEES |67 BRI T ARIBRRAAEK
payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are D o REFBEN TARAIRENREFE
set out in Note 28(b). BT 28(b) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B AR &
at 31 December 2012
20126124318

2012 2011

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

& ARBTRT ARETR
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net m¥ - BE KRG FE [l 5,966,758 5076,177
Construction in progress TEIR 12 3,793,763 992,681
Lease prepayments MEBMAHIE 13 311,331 126,243
Intangible assets R EE 14 59,265 61,563
Receivables under finance lease FEREEHER 15 13,048 13,683
Interest in associates REE R RIRER 17 706,155 399,756
Interest in jointly controlled entities RE&E R RIH R 18 38,505 -
Other non-current assets HEtbIERBEE 19 1,111,255 939,738
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE 6(d) 59,766 27,574
Total non-current assets FRBEERRE 12,059,846 7,637,415
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 20 61,018 32,323
Trade and other receivables JE Mo AR 3% I B PR M 3R 21 1,319,667 1,029,231
Receivables under finance lease EREEREN |5 2,117 2,117
Income tax recoverable Al B AT 1535 6(c) 362 6463
Pledged bank deposits BEMRTER 2 503,491 158,951
Cash and cash equivalents BeREEEY 23 846,600 958,280
Total current assets mEEEAH 2,733,255 2,187,365
Current liabilities nBEE
Borrowings EE 24 3,263,317 1,115,520
Trade and other payables T IR R A FE (T 3K 25 2,448,711 1363016
Obligations under finance lease REHEARE 26 37,099 10,525
Income tax payable JEfS PSR 6(c) 70,221 73913
Total current liabilities RBEEAR 5,819,348 2,562,974
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (3,086,093) (375,609)
Total assets less current liabilities EEATRRBRE 8,973,753 7,261,806

BEF 67 AMME ARG RRNAK

o

o
&

The notes on pages 65 to 167 form part of these financial statements.

okr
=
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

BT TR )
at 31 December 2012
R20125 12 /31 B

2012 2011
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
M AR®TR ARETET

Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Borrowings & 24 2,864,774 2,084,823
Obligations under finance lease RMEREERE 26 487,267 119,836
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE 6(d) 74,561 53796
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAE 3,426,602 2,258,455
Net assets BEFE 5,547,151 500335
Equity B
Share capital BRA 27 12 12
Reserves i 5,485,967 4991271
Total equity attributable to equity ERRERREA
shareholders of the Company ElERRAE 5,485,979 4991,283
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 61,172 12,068
Total equity A 5,547,151 5,003,35
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2013. BEEEN2013F3A 28 ABERRENE -
Zhongguo Sun Zhao Xiangti
Zhongguo Sun HIEE
Director Director
23 23
The notes on pages 65 to 167 form part of these financial statements. FSAEE |67 BN T RRIBRENANK

#n o
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Statement of Financial Position

B AR R 2%
at 31 December 2012
20126124318

2012 2011
Note RMB'000 RMB000
M AR®TR AR®BTT

Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment, net m¥ - BE KRG FE 112 340
Interest in subsidiaries BB A AR 16 4,011,033 3616354
Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 4,011,145 3,616,694
Current assets RBEE

Other receivables Hib el 08 21 1,251 [,204
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 2 34,009 -
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEFEY 23 4,987 51,860
Total current assets B EEME 40,247 53,064
Current liabilities REAE

Borrowings a7 24 1,618,014 231917
Other payables H e 508 25 52,568 32,852
Total current liabilities REEEEHE 1,670,582 264,769
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (1,630,335) (211,705)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAEARDAE 2,380,810 3404989
Non-current liabilities *RBeE

Borrowings fE 24 - 695,751

Total non-current liabilities E =Rt - 695,751

Net assets BEEFRE 2,380,810 2,709,238

BEE |67 BN FEART SRR AR
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The notes on pages 65 to |67 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position (continved)

AR T )
at 31 December 2012
R20125 12 /31 B

2012 2011
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
M AR®TR ARETET

Equity B
Share capital BRA 27 12 12
Reserves [ 28(a) 2,380,798 2,709,226
Total equity A 2,380,810 2,709,238
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2013, BEERNI3F3A8AMERKERE -

Zhongguo Sun Zhao Xiangti

Zhongguo Sun HIEE

Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 65 to 167 form part of these financial statements. FBEEF 167 BERNME AR BRRMOEK

7 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SRS BR

for the year ended 31 December 2012
HZ012F 128318 ILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FLARRRSAARSE
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
FER

BA  RGRE AERE  HftRk  REEA @y RREE ER4E
Note ~ RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBO00
i+ ARETn ARETn ARETn AR¥Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Txn
(Note 27) (Note 28(c)) (Note 28(d)) (Note 28(e))
(Bsk27) (WIER28() (M#E28(d) (FitsEas(e))

=
=

At | January 201 | R0IEIAIE 12 2995502 308238 (313696) 1362775 4352831 13720 436655
Total comprehensive income REGREYGETH

for the year = = = = 830819 830819 4828 835,647
Appropriations 4 - - 93624 - (B3 - - -
Dividends approved in respect of BELEES

the previous year EERRE 28(b) - - - - (180683)  (180683) - (18083)
Purchase of own shares fxth s 27 - (11684) = - — (11684 — (11684
Distributions to a DAL IERRR

non-controlling shareholder = = = = = = (6:480) (6:480)
At 31 December 201 | R011E12A31B 12 2983818 401862  (313696) 1919287 4991283 12068 500335
At | January 2012 RW2FIAIE 2 2983818 401862 (31369) 1919287 4,991,283 12,068 5003351
Total comprehensive income REREYEEE

for the year - - - - 770,117 770,117 l,168 771,85
Appropriations B - - 89,228 - (89229 - - -
Dividends approved in respect of AELEEN

the previous year BERRE 28(b) - - - - (234888  (234:888) - (234889)
Capital contribution from IR EE

non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - 7,403 7403
Effect on equity arising from SRR R AR R A

the acquisition of EENRE

non-controlling interest - - - (40,533) - (40,533) 40,533 -
At 31 December 2012 R12F 124318 2 2983818 491,000  (354229) 2365288 5485979 61,172 5,547,151

6SEEF 167 ARMI BRI RERMAK

(/.

o

The notes on pages 65 to |67 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

A\ (3 =B
SR ERER
for the year ended 3| December 2012
BEWNFA3IALEFE

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB000
i3 ARBTRT ARETR
Operating activities KeED
Profit before taxation BRE A0 A E 907,129 981,447
Adjustments for: FARIBER :
Depreciation e 348,451 275728
Amortisation B 9,153 3652
Finance income BBIA (18,961) (17,055)
Finance costs BB 209811 126,684
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HENE - BE KR
plant and equipment B8/ ()8 433 (114)
Share of results of associates EEMERRRE 3,459 244
Share of results of jointly controlled entities ElEaERAEE 279 -
Increase in inventories FEEN (28,695) (2,248)
Increase in trade and other receivables FE MR BR TR K EL A R MR IR 52 (99,800) (197,715)
(Decrease) /increase in trade and other payables ERRRREMEATRIECRD),/E0 (20,953) 79,710
1,310,306 1,250,333
Interest received EHHIE 16,057 12819
Interest paid ERFHE (262,406) (167,748)
Income tax paid B FEH (165,605) (161999)
Income tax refund PTG RURM 20,743 41,241
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHMENRERR 919,095 974,646
Investing activities RETE
Capital expenditure BARX (3,782,046) (2,178,115)
(Increase) /decrease in pledged bank deposits BEBRTERCEM), R (344,540) 308617
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BFE KR & 3813 667
Collection of receivables under finance lease B A & E K 2,45 2,245
Payment to a shareholder B ES TP 111,285 =
Repayment from a shareholder RREBFE (111,285) =
Payment for other investment in equity securities Ht R A EFRE XM (8,400) =
Payment for investment in associates RERE DAL IHE (309,858) (300,000
Payment for investment in jointly controlled entities RERE AR NHE (38,784) =
Advance to an associate REEE A RIE A (74,193) =
Loan to a jointly controlled entity AR SR AE LA (21,070) =
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFANAEL TR (4.572,833) (2,166,586)
The notes on pages 65 to 167 form part of these financial statements. FSEER 167 ERMT RAMBRENAK
#Bip e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement continued)

EHEERER @)

for the year ended 31 December 2012
HZ012F 128318 ILFE

2012 2011

Note RMB'000 RMB'000

s AR®TR  ARETL
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from borrowings ERAEFE 4,173,563 2,112,776
Repayment of borrowings BRER (1,245,815) (828533)
Proceeds from finance lease transactions BERERZHEHR 400,000 100,000
Payment of obligations under finance lease BERNEAHEARINRE (10,025) (3200)
Advances from associates NN 450,000 -
Advances from a shareholder PERRER 5 AR 66,172 —
Repayment to a shareholder ERRFEFE (58,122) =
Advances from a director HE=EAFE - 27,700
Repayment to a director BRESFHE - (27,700)
Payment for repurchase of shares TRk BB A - (11,684)
Capital injection from non-controlling shareholders FERRR T ERTE A 7,403 =
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder X FEERRR RS (6,480) -
Dividend paid to equity shareholders of the Company STRGEARTRRLORE (234,888) (180,683)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEDAENRESFE 3,541,808 ,188,676
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBSESENRIZE (111,930) (3264)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIAIBRERALEZEN 958,280 970458
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEEXSENTE 250 8914
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December RI2AIBRERREEEY 3 846,600 958,280

The notes on pages 65 to |67 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER AR R

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (the “Company"") was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group™)
are principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in the People's

Republic of China (the “PRC").

Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed on 10 July 2009 (the “Reorganisation”)
to rationalise the group structure for the public listing of the Company's shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™),
the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries comprising the Group.
Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 24
September 2009. The Company issued 339,232,500 ordinary shares with par value of
USD0.000001| each at a price of HKD7.00 per share by way of public offering of the
Company's ordinary shares to Hong Kong and overseas investors. The Company's

shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 8 October 2009.

XN,

ARERREEEAR
BERBESEERARATEA2A]DRA
2007F9A B AREBEREHSERE D
E(REREREBIN 19 FE=FER)
AREERERSIMALAREER
BEAEAR AR REMBARATS
BATEEDFEAFEARANE
(PREDHETERBEEREE -

)

REBEADAIRNEEBHERIMA
RARI(BZMD)ERAR LT - K&
BT TEA(EAD  UEBLASE
BMEE EHAR009F7A108 %
B BUARAIKAAEEETXNE
NRIMERLDA - EAEANFEIR
ARE2009F9 A24 B FIBHBREE
o RARBIAFR700ETHER
339,232,500 A% % % T B.0.00000 | 3£ 7T #9
TaRmEALRBTEARNAAEE
REBRBIMZESE - RRAIRMHER
2009 10 A 8 BFER#A AT L7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and
Interpretations promulgated by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB"). These financial statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 5 AR Y L )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total borrowings of RMB6,128,09 1,000,
including certain loans amounting to RMBI,618,014,000 of which
RMB1,060,841,000 were classified as current as the Group had breached
certain financial covenants at 31 December 2012. Consequently, at 31

December 2012 the Group had net current liabilities of RMB3,086,093,000.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business. Nevertheless, the directors are of
the opinion that the Group will be able to finance its future working capital

and financing requirements in view of the following;

(i)  subsequent to 31 December 2012, the Group received waivers from
compliance with the relevant financial covenants at 31 December

2012 from the lenders concerned,

(i) subsequent to 3| December 2012, the Group obtained the additional
loans and bank facilities of RMB995,798,000 from certain PRC banks

and a director;

2

TEREHHE(E)

(b)

BRRROENEE
AEER2012F A3 AZER
BEAARE128091,0007T &
REEAREER2012F128318
BEAAREI6180140007T K
BOEH BRERETHBER
£ Hh AR 1,060,841,000 L4
D RRBEHM - At - AEER
W0RFNABAZERBAER
AR ¥ 3,086,093,000 7T °

HERBRASEREL M6
NFRFEEARNIEEN - Bt
HENEEME BT EEEER
FRAREFETE - A K
SEEERRENATREAAEHE
RERE AR REEERNIEE
S -

() M2012F12A318 8%
AEEWE T HBBRSIAY
HERWNENAINBER
MRS RAM IR L

(i)  M2012F12A318H%:
ARBERETHRERRA
BN EREIHEE
RMBITREHFARK
995,798,000 7T, :
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b)  Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
(i)  the Group has been actively discussing with bankers to obtain new
funding for development of production facilities and will actively
discuss with its bankers for renewal of certain short term banking

facilities when they fall due in 2013; and

(iv)  the directors are considering other alternatives to raise external
funds for the Group. The Group has received commitment for
approximately RMB,200,000,000 of financing, which is subject to
certain conditions, including but not limited to the completion of due

diligence and execution and delivery of legal documentation.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 on
a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable to continue to operate
as a going concem, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of

these adjustments has not been reflected in the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the Group's interest in

associates and jointly controlled entities.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

BERBEBERLD A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 5 AR Y L )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements
is the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out

below:

= financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or as trading

securities (see Note 2(f)); and

= derivative financial instruments (see Note 2(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a few amendments to IFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. None
of these developments are relevant to the Group's and the Company's
financial statements. The Group and the Company have not applied any
new standard, amendment or interpretation that is not yet effective for the

current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential

voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resufting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the

subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 5 AR Y L )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with Notes 2(n) or (o) depending on the nature of

the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see Note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity (see Note 2(e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)), unless the

investment is classified as held for sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Associates and jointly controlled entities
An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management, including

participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement between the Group or the Company and other parties, where
the contractual arrangement establishes that the Group or the Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control over the economic

activity of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method, unless
it is classified as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the investee's net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see Note 2(k)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees' other comprehensive income is

recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)  Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the
jointly controlled entity, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group's long-term

interests that in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the

associate or the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses

provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case

they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being

recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at

the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition

of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in an associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(

Other investments in equity securities
The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in associates and jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is
their transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably estimated using
valuation techniques whose variables include only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out

in Note 2(t)(ii).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment

losses (see Note 2(K)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(

Other investments in equity securities (continued)

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale equity securities. At the end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve. Dividend income from these
investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 2(t)(ii). When these investments are derecognised or impaired
(see Note 2(k)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss

on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(Kk)).

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction and equipment pending installation, and is initially recognised
at cost. Cost comprises cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(v)).
The construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use, notwithstanding any
delays in the issue of the relevant commissioning certificates by the relevant

PRC authorities.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are

recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings |5 - 35 years
Plant and machinery 10 - 20 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5- 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@)

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour,
and an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable (see Note 2(v)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which

it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Amortisation of intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years. Both the period and method

of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or

contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a

right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in retum

for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

U]

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, except for land held for
own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon
at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments of such assets are
included in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in Note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in Note 2(k).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged

to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FEEHBE@E
()  Leased assets (continued) () HEEEE
(iv)  Receivables under finance lease vy EUmERER

Where the Group leased out assets under finance lease, the initial
direct costs incurred on such assets are recorded as receivables
under finance lease. Finance income implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the receivables for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the purchase costs of land use rights.
Land use rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Amortisation is charged to profit

or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the land use rights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 TESHEE @)
(k) Impairment of assets (k) EERME
()  Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables () BREAIBHFREREWRTEN
HEER

Investments in equity securities and receivables that are stated at cost SABK A Sl S X R 2 5] E’\JHQ
or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting period REHRE R YR
to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. R ERE RS ?T%FEJ
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that DERL BRENSED
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the R BENTEIREER
following loss events: SERTBRIBTIES

UT—BH%ZRERER :

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - BHEALREAMK
R &
= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in - ERaH flmkrR
interest or principal payments; 58 HEE N S R
&
~ it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or - BEBARTEES
other financial reorganisation; ESETHMHMKE
8
= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or - BE W5 KLES
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; ERRENENNE
and REBABRKIME
2. %
—  asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an - KREBFRENLA
investment in an equity instrument below its cost. BELREAIKE
E NN
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 TESHBE(E)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k BEREE
() Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables () BREAIRHFREREWRTEMN
(continued) BEEE (&)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and MEMZZEPRFAE - EfR]
recognised as follows: EERNREBESRERN
T
= For investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled - RRBRARBER
entities (including those recognised using the equity method Al AERANR
(see Note 2(e))), the impairment loss is measured by 5(@ 5 DA 505 T
comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with REKE(ZRMT
its carrying amount in accordance with Note 2(k)(ii). The 2e))) » BRIRMEE2(k)
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable (i) B EEEE N
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable BERRANATKDS
amount in accordance with Note 2(K)(ii). BHBRHAREEER

B BB M2
(i) - BERIEEEA
W& B a3
FEMNE®L  RES
BeRERD -

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment - DARARSIREIE LT
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying RAZES  HREES
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash BRASREENK
flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a EEERGTHRR
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. ReR(MERNTE
Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost are not BEX BN R
reversed. BEMHRITHIS LR

RYF)NERAE
AR AR B 7 89 B AR 3
FHREBRT SR
B[
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FEEHBER#)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k) EERER)
() Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables () BREAIBHFREREWRTEN
(continued) RIEEE (&)
— For trade and other receivables carried at amortised cost, the DA 55 PR 51 7R 69 8
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the W BR R B B A R B R

asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined

had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 5 AR Y L )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHBK@E)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k) EERER)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) HittEENHEE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end REEFZEBHR - AR
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following KAz B ER AREE T4
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised BESHREBRMETR © &
no longer exists or may have decreased: NERRREBEES T

BEALARECERD -

= property, plant and equipment; - Y% BELSE:
= construction in progress; - EEIRE:

—  lease prepayments; -  THEBEFMHE

—  intangble assets; and - BEREE: X

= other non-current assets (excluding receivables). - HEtERBEETE

REWEIR) °

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is MRHEBEFRETR - %
estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that are not yet available ZEBERT WA EESE
for use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not Hhat o Bboh - B ARE
there is any indication of impairment. AR R EE

BEHEFHEATREEHR
NEERDFERETR
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

= Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the

financial year (see Notes 2(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only

at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing

the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal

Ooccurs.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for
financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with Note 2(s)(i), trade
and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at

cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would

be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Obligations for contributions to PRC local government defined contribution
retirement plans pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordiance, which is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees,

are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when incurred.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current
tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and the following additional conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHBE@E)
(r)  Income tax (continued) () FEH(ER)
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to RELEHRBEEENEEM
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— BB ERATER -1
B R -

—  the same taxable entity; or - R—RHER: %

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which - TRENEHEL 8
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are EUEREERR
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the SEBEERBERL
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net MEAESZEEEY
basis or realise and settle simultaneously. REEERBEEER

KB R A - 1%
FREETRNHK
BEEMEE N
BRE ZARER
ZEAEMEEZAE -

(s)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (s) FEHNBBER EERIEE
&
()  Financial guarantees issued (i) FEEMBEER
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the HBERRRIEBLR T ET
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary ABERA)BREEBLA
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a BRI MIEE IR - WA
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with BERXAATHEAAL
the terms of a debt instrument. AX-BEBEBATEEN
HHEBMELNERNEG
O

Annual Report 2012 £ # @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee (being the transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit

or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with Note 2(s)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2 EESHER@
() FEENRBER EERIEBR
& (&)

(ii)

HitERRIBRE
MRAEEARREARE
FENSZHARBATERET
B AMAHeERLE
MBI - AT DA AT 52
it ARRKHAER
TEER R EHERER - 1
REBKHEEEEA - BT
REHENEEMFE X HINE
Bt AZH -

IRRAE M S i A0 AT B 1
RE - ARBEHEBEE
LA SRS - BRERZ
EARESAKAARE B
TS5 KO 7] B M AR A
ERBIRRS - MRAEKEH
BEARFRZAZRTARK
EHREBRETRETRE
FhE NeERERALBA
(ERREEYElFayoh D2
HREE B AIBRSP ©

Annual Report 2012 £ # @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(ii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when gas products are delivered at the
customers’ premises or collected by the customer which is taken
to be the point in time when the customer has accepted the gas
products and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax and other sales taxes and is after deduction

of any trade discounts.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into RMB at
the applicable rates of exchange quoted by the People's Bank of China
(“PBOC") prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into RMB at the applicable
PBOC rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and

losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using applicable PBOC rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the

applicable PBOC rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies: (continued)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
financial statements, are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the

Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group is engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in
the PRC. Although the industrial gases are sold to on-site and merchant
customers, the Group's most senior executive management regularly review
their consolidated financial statements to assess the performance and
make resource allocation decisions. Accordingly, no segment information is

presented.

Substantially all of the Group's external customers and non-current assets

are located in the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group's financial position and results of operations are senstive to accounting
methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation of these
financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that the Group believes to be
reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about matters that
are not readily apparent from other sources. On an on-going basis, management
evaluates its estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts,

circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties
affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results to
changes in condition and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth in Note
2. The Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these financial

statements.

(@) Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly
in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is

adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable, this asset may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the
value in use. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to the level of sales revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections

of sales revenue and amount of operating costs.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Group has entered into long-term gas supply contracts with on-site
customers for periods up to 30 years. The production facilities are built on
or in close proximity to the on-site customers for the supply of industrial
gases to such customers (“on-site facilities”). The Group receives fixed
annual amounts over the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts
plus variable charges based on the quantity of industrial gases supplied.
The Group also sells gas products produced from the on-site facilities to

merchant customers.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(c)  Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease (continued)
In determining whether the arrangement contains a lease, the Group has
considered the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts. Pursuant to the
terms of the long-term gas supply contracts, the on-site customers do not
have the right to operate or control physical access to the on-site facilities.
In addition, gas products produced from the on-site facilities are also sold
to merchant customers. The amounts sold to the merchant customers are
more than an insignificant amount of the total gas products produced from
the on-site facilities. Accordingly, the Group concluded that the arrangement

of long-term gas supply contracts does not contain any lease.

TURNOVER
The Group is principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in
the PRC. Tumover represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold,

net of value added tax.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had two customers that
individually exceeded 0% of the Group's turnover, being RMB845,123,000 and
RMB546,080,000 respectively.

During the year ended 3| December 2011, the Group had three customers
that individually exceeded 10% of the Group's turnover, being RMB761,669,000,
RMB558,470,000 and RMB532,863,000 respectively.

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from the customers are set out in
Note 31(b).
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ (crediting):

BRBLAT R E
BB FEE M/ (GEA) -

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETRT
(@)  Finance (income)/costs: (@ HBOEA)/ KK

Interest income FEWA (16,057) (12,819)
Finance income on receivables under finance lease el R E R ERARE WA (1,610) (1,680)
Total interest income T 85t (17,667) (14,499)
Foreign currency exchange gain BEE e (1,294 (2,556)
Finance income BT (18,961) (17,055)
Interest on borrowings fERAE 314,567 177,352
Finance charges on obligations under finance lease HEHEAENREER 4,030 2,486
Total interest expenses MBX b #EEt 318,597 179,838
Less: borrowing costs capitalised W BRMEBRAR (108,786) (53,154)
Finance costs FIBERAR 209,811 126,684
190,850 109,629

Borrowing costs have been capitalised TERBAIELA T

at the following rates: MEERAE :

Capitalisation rate (per annum) BRELE (BF) 50%-7.7%  54% -7.8%

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ERESEEERA A
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5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued):

5

BR B A0 A 78 ()
BHRAMBER R GIA) (&) -

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®ETR
(b)  Staff costs: (b) BIMZE:

Salaries, wages, bonuses and benefits ¢ 18 TAREF 204,450 164,393

Contributions to defined contribution TR TR INGT IR
retirement schemes 21,176 ['1,960
225,626 176,353

Staff costs included directors’ remuneration (see Note 7).

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group's PRC
subsidiaries participate in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes"") organised by the respective local government authorities whereby the
Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes at rates in the range of

10% to 22% of the eligible employees’ salaries during the year.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees'
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD25,000

(HKD20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits

beyond the annual contributions described above.

BIRFBEEEHFM(2AMET) -

BEFEFBAEBRURAMN  EXE
BT BEMEAR2E-—BHPEEH
TR 3 & B P AR 48 ) T BB 4 SR AR AR A
FE([ZEt ) Bt AEEEES
BEREERFETSMI0%E 2% R Z
ARl R

AEETREER R LB EG
PlAREEEEEIEENREZEEN
XEEERV—BRHEARLTE
([aEe:E]) -  BESHE A S
BURTATENTEBTRNKE -
BEEESHE EXRHEESARE
BRBAKRARS%REEIRR  BZRAT
A1EE YA R 250008 7L(2012 F ¢ A Al
/20,0007 7T) o FTEIERENESRE

R ERFREHERN ARBYEEMBE
ABRERIIELE

Annual Report 2012 £ # @



@

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued):

5 BRBUATRDE (40

BRAMBEE R GIA) (&)

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE AREBTR
()  Other items: () HfEE
Utilities nHEH
— Electricity -E% 2,292,962 1,872,088
— Steam —#&A 514,585 451,592
Depreciation e 348,451 275,728
Amortisation B
— Land lease premium —MERMRIE 4,899 1,777
— Intangible assets —-EVEE 4,254 1,875
Auditors’ remuneration RERIM
— Audit service —EGR% 4,647 4,298
— Non-audit service —IRERRE 690 71
Operating lease charges: minimum REHEER
lease payment (land and buildings) HERERE(IHEERE) 16,567 10,399
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BE R
plant and equipment REOER/ () F8 433 (114)
Impairment losses on trade and FE IR 0 S Lt JE L 0B
other receivables REEE 18,491 71

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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6

INCOME TAX

@)

Taxation in profit or loss

Fre®t
(@) FFABRMBIE

2012 201 |

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMTRE AREBTR

Provision of PRC income tax for the year FEPBMEHR 147,271 132,968
Deferred tax BERETRE (11,427) 12,832
135,844 145,800

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable

b) FERIHBRREARRAENS

tax rates SR E AR
2012 201 |
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETR
Profit before taxation BR A0 A A 907,129 981,447
Expected PRC income tax expense RS%EEH R ER
at the statutory tax rate of 25% R BMAETHE R 226,782 245,362
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PR ENERNTBTE 6,220 6,435
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEBMARNTIGR 2 3,172) -
Effect of tax losses REBRNTE 2,376 3219
Differential tax rate on subsidiaries’ results Eil=YNSI ON: bS] (73,909) (84,390)
Tax effect arising from the change BMESMHBTE
in tax rate (Note (i)) (PR EE (i) (18,897) -
Tax credit of domestic equipment BEEBERED
purchases (Note (ii)) REIRH 0 (B 3 (ii)) (25,423) (57,875)
Tax on distributable profits of subsidiaries st BB 2 R A 2k
in the PRC (Note (ii)) MR E (MR i) 20,932 32,988
Tax effect in respect of share of results e E NA R EE AT
of associates and jointly controlled entities XENBBEYE 935 6l
Actual income tax expense ERPTEHR X 135,844 145,800
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6

INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax

rates (continued)
Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British

Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the

Cayman Islands and BVI.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the Group

sustained losses for the purposes of Hong Kong profits tax during the current

and prior years.

The provision for current PRC income tax is based on a statutory rate of
25% (201 1: 25%) of the assessable profit as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group, which are entitled to 50% exemption of the income
tax pursuant to the grandfathering arrangement under the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the PRC. In addition, pursuant to the relevant documents issued
by the state and local tax bureau of the PRC during 2012, certain of the

Group's subsidiaries operating in the westem developing region of the PRC

are granted the preferential tax rate of 15%.

(i) Before 31 December 2007, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC
obtained the approval of income tax credit for purchasing qualified domestic
equipment from the local tax authorities in accordance with the relevant
tax regulations issued by the State Administration of Taxation. Pursuant to
Guoshuifa [2008] No.52 issued by the State Administration of Taxation
in May 2008, such tax credit policy ceased to be effective since | January
2008. During the year ended 3| December 2012, certain subsidiaries utilised
the unused tax credit of RMB25,423,000 granted by the relevant local tax

authorities prior to 3| December 2007 (201 |: RMB57,875,000).

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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6  INCOME TAX (continued) 6 FriSBi(E)
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax (b) FERIHERBEAREGENS
rates (continued) FBNRE R (F)
Notes (continued): FizE (%) -
(i) Withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, is imposed (i  PEERCEDIRK2008F |

when dividends are distributed by a PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate AIBERSHEFGEF
RBELASNG H AR AR 1 AR ER
10% BB KU BN AL - BR 3F
BRBGASG RS B R =
T AR % o M20085F | A1 A
ZRIBRENARD RE B R
SR

holding company outside mainland China for earnings generated beginning on
| January 2008. Undistributed eamings generated prior to | January 2008 are

exempted from such withholding tax.

(c) Income tax (recoverable)/payable in the consolidated statement of () AHHBRRRA(THE), FEM
financial position Fr&®
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR
At | January RIAIB 67,450 55240
Provision for PRC income tax for the year FEHBEMEHR 147,271 132,968
PRC income tax paid B BERER (165,605) (161999)
PRC income tax refund PEFEHRERM 20,743 41,241
At 31 December R12A31H 69,859 67,450
Representing: & -
Income tax recoverable R e (362) (6,463)
Income tax payable PR AT {510 70,221 73913
69,859 67,450
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6  INCOME TAX (continued) 6 FriSBi(#E)
(d)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised d) BRELEHEEEREE
() The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the () BHIBRIRAERHE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements are THBEBE),/ BENERK
as follows: HHAREBIT
Property, ~ Allowance Profits
plantand  for doubtful Taxloss  expected to
The Group equipment debts carry forwards distribute Total
(Note)
A&E BRERZEE REERE BR&EE  2RAE @zt
(Fitit)

RMB000 ~ RMB0O0  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBO0O
AR®TR AR®TR AREMTR ARBTR ARETR

Deferred tax ansing from:  EAEHIEA A T EBEE -

At | January 201 | R20IE1AIH 2533 (2248) (5.341) 18,446 13390
Charged/(credited) RERR/(GTA)
to profit or loss (171) (841) (19,144) 32988 12832
At3] December 2011 H201 1€ 12H318 2362 (3089) (24485) 51434 26222
At | January 2012 R212F1 /18 2,362 (3,089) (24,485) 51434 26,22
Charged/(credited) Bz (GTA)
to profit or loss (167) (2,350) (29.842) 20,932 (11,427)
At3| December 2012 20124 124318 2,195 (5439) (54,327) 72,366 14,795
Note: Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed profits represent temporary MisE : ROIRAEEEER B
differences relating to the distributable profits accumulated since | BEREAEFELT
January 2008 of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC that are expected Wi B AR B R E &
to be distributed in the foreseeable future. R HR S R 8 B 2008 4

A1 BRRFHET D
AR TR =
_;E_ °

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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6  INCOME TAX (continued) 6 FriSBi(E)
(d)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued) d BRIECHEEEREE(E)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: (iy AHHBIRRIRNALHE
2012 2011
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETR

Net deferred tax asset recognised RE B RR PHER
in the statement of financial position BERIAEEFRE 59,766 27574

Net deferred tax liability recognised R B SL R PR
in the statement of financial position BERIEREFE (74,561) (53,796)
(14,795) (26222)

(e)  Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (e) KREREELEHEEE

At 31 December 2012, temporary differences relating to the distributable R2012F 128318 KEEZH
profits accumulated since | January 2008 of the Group's subsidiaries in the & b B > B4E A T8 B By R AR TR 2R
PRC, that are not expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future, FoIREIE 2008 | B | B#E 25t
amounted to approximately RMB2,470,532,000 (201 I: RMBI,774,284,000). WA DR ERENEREER
Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised in respect of the tax that 45 AR #2470532,000 75(201 |
would be payable on distribution of these retained earnings as the Group £ ANRM|7742840007C) © B
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined RAREE I EN B A RRIRE
that it is probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable % BAEEEAEIERNE
future. RAERRAEMNE - WU RER

B R % F R B B I e A B B IR AR
BOETHBAAR
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7  DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 7 EEHMH
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong BEEBARNIMERE 6 KRBENESSH
Companies Ordinance are as follows: BEEE25 T :
2012
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
g4 BUR RIKER

e HtEN  BREL  SEEX @t
RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0OO  RMBO0O
AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR

Executive directors HITEE

Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun - 1,030 4,000 - 5,030
Zhao Xiangti HEE - 807 - 47 854
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond Strutt - 1,215 1,000 - 2215
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE

Xu Zhao G m - - - m
Zheng Fuya g5s 24 - - - 24
Wang Ching IR 212 - - - 212
Total st 708 3,052 5,000 47 8,807

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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7  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7 EEFME
Directors” remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong RESBRBEDE 6 KRENEESH
Companies Ordinance are as follows (continued): MEE25IMT (&) :
2011
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'’  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R IR
we  HREN  BREEL  SEHER S

RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOQO
ARBTL ARETL ARETLI ARETT ARETR

Executive directors HITEF

Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun = 1,203 4,000 = 5203
Zhao Xiangti HIEE - 688 - 40 728
Chen Yan (resigned on 30 August 2011)  BR& (R 2011 £ 8 A 30 HEHE) - 39 - - 39
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond Strutt = 1,203 960 = 2,163
Independent non-executive directors BUHHTEE

Xu Zhao i 292 - - - 292
Zheng Fuya g=T M3 = = = M3
Wang Ching Er 195 - - - 195
Total st 730 3484 4960 40 9214
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8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, two (201 I: two) are directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in

respect of the other three (201 I: three) individuals are as follows:

BREHFMAL

haREHMALTRERSA Q0! F : /M
Z)BEE  HEMRMZ7PRE - &
B=Z(0I & : =4) AT EHE 25

-
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR
Salaries and other emoluments e REMER 3,925 3,658
Discretionary bonuses HBEIEAL - 2971
Retirement scheme contributions RGBT IR 85 79
4,010 6,708
The emoluments of the three (201 |: three) individuals with the highest emoluments =20 E: =255 MALTH

are within the following bands:

FMNFTIIRE -

Number of individuals

N
2012 201 |
HKD 1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 77T & 2,000,000 7 7T
(RMBI,216,000 to RMBI,622,000) (AR® 1216000 T2 AR 1,622,0007T) 3 -
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 /87T % 2,500,000 % 7T
(RMBI,622,001 to RMB2,027,000) (AR 1,622,001 TZ AR 2,027,0007T) - -
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 /87T 2 3,000,000 % 7T
(RMB2,027,001 to RMB2,433,000) (AR#¥2,027,001 TZ AR 2,433,0007T) - 3
3 3

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
includes a loss of RMB93,540,000 (201 I: RMBI3,488,000) which has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable

to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMB770,117,000
(2011: RMB830,819,000) and the weighted average number of shares of
1,806,830,000 ordinary shares (201 1: 1,806,983,275 ordinary shares) in issue

during the year, calculated as follows:

ARREBEFE ABGFE

AREERREAEREEHAERRE
ERARAIMBREABRNERAA
R #935400007(2011F: A R #
13,488,0007¢) °

BEREF

(@)

SREXEF
EREARFRRALALA
BREZFAEAEBRGEIBARE
770,1170007(201 1 F = A K #
830,819,0007T) * U R FRE ET
on#E ¥ 15 & 38 R 1,806,830,000 A%
(2011 : 1,806,983275 & @A) 5T
CRUNNE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares: TERINEFEE R
2012 201 |
Issued ordinary shares as at | January RIAIBEETERR 806,830,000 1,809,232,500
Effect of shares repurchased RERBNTE - (2,249,225)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R12A31 BEBk
as at 31 December MEFHHE 1,806,830,000 |,806,983,275
Diluted earnings per share (b) EREEERF

The amount of diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per

share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during

both the current and prior years.

ARARAEAFE RARFES
RRECHELRE  SREER
MEFRERBMZRRH -
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT I 9% BERRE
The Group
AEH

Motor

vehicles

Plant and and other
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment Total

AER
FEE HBENHZE HtRE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR

Costs: B

At | January 201 | P20 A1 H 213,675 4,066,720 80924 4361319
Additions 2 1,685 34,881 60967 97,533
Transferred from construction in progress ~ FITEE T128 A 63215 1,369,013 - 1,432,228
Disposal hE = (87) (1,393) (1,480)
At 31 December 201 | R2011F 128318 278,575 5,470,527 140,498 5,889,600
At | January 2012 R2012F 1 A1 H 278,575 5470527 140,498 5,889,600
Additions il 532 163,149 31,312 194,993
Transferred from construction in progress ~ FI7EEE L1288 A 100,088 948,197 - 1,048,285
Disposal HE - (6,384) (2,100) (8,484)
At 31 December 2012 R2012%12A31R 379,195 6,575,489 169,710 7,124,394

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) I 9% BERRKE®

The Group (continued)
AEE (%)
Motor
vehicles

Plant and and other

Buildings ~ machinery  equipment Total
RER

EE HBER#ESE HttRE Azt
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥TR

Accumulated depreciation Rt ER B ELEA -

and impairment losses:
At | January 201 | P20 A1 H (58,105)  (459,575) (20942)  (538,622)
Charge for the year REFTRITE 9219) (250,236 (16273)  (275728)
Whritten back on disposal R E R E D = 4 923 927
At 31 December 201 | R2011F12A318 (67324)  (709,807) (36292)  (813423)
At | January 2012 R2012F1A1H (67,324)  (709,807) (36292)  (813,423)
Charge for the year REFRITE (13,701)  (309,323) (25427)  (348.451)
Written back on disposal R E R E D - 2,365 1,873 4238
At 3| December 2012 R2012F 124318 (81,025)  (1,016,765) (59.846)  (1,157,636)
Carrying amounts: REELE -

At 31 December 2012 R2012%F 128318 298,170 5,558,724 109,864 5,966,758
At 31 December 201 | R2011F 124318 201251 4760720 104206 5,076,177

(@  The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly located in the PRC.

(b) At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group's borrowings and bills payable

were secured by the Group's plant and machinery with carrying amount of

RMB,666,884,000 (201 I: RMB2,334,932,000).

(@) AEEWE BERBEISES
.

(b) R2012F12A3H KEEER
A R # 1,666,884,000 7T(201 | 4 :
AR #2,334932,00070) K = &%
BECHRASEERNETETUA
RN RBEIEER -
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) I Y% BERRE®E
(c)  Certain of the Group's leased plant and machinery are considered as being () AEEEANETHERESHSR

held under finance lease. Net book value of plant and machinery held under

finance lease was as follows:

RUARBEENARE - LREHE
ENARENRE kRN REE
EEHF :

2012 201 |
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE AREBTR
Carrying amount of plant and machinery WREMEEFRFERNEE K
held under finance lease HRREER 154,779 23613

The Group has entered into long-term gas supply agreements with certain (d) AEBHEETRFREIIRPREMR
customers for periods up to 30 years. Certain of the Group's buildings EWE EHEANE - A&
are located on land leased from these customers. Accordingly, building BETREENRAmELEREAA
ownership certificate is not obtained in respect of such buildings. The i E o Al - FEREMAR
carrying amount of such buildings amounted to RMBI55,250,000 at 3| EREMARES - R20NENA
December 2012 (201 1: RMB101,594,000). 3N L EEREBEAAR
% 155,250,000 7C(201 | F = AKHS
101,594,0007C) ©
At 3| December 2012, the Group was in the process of applying for the () R2012F 128318 REEIFRE

ownership certificate for certain buildings with an aggregate carrying amount
amounting to RMBI18,051,000 (201 I: RMB29,503,000). The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly

occupy and use of the above mentioned buildings.

NEERMAREENETEERK
HEEZRARE18051,0007T
(20114 : AR¥29,503,0007T) °
ARREERR  FEEAEEE
REBERARERAUNLFLAEE

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
() At 3l December 2012, impairment losses were recognised in respect of the
non-current assets of the Group's subsidiary, Zhangjiagang Yingde Gases Co.,,
Ltd. (“Zhangjiagang Yingde"), as follows:

I % BERFEE
H R201RF12A3IH BEHERER
ARERBERAR(RREBR
mIFRBEERINRESE
R

2012 2011
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR

Property, plant and equipment Y ER N 78,085 78,085
Construction in progress EETIRE 92,170 92,170
Intangible assets EBVEE 8,751 8,751

179,006 179,006

Zhangjiagang Yingde was engaged in the business of producing fluorine
related gas products. The production plant of Zhangjiagang Yingde was
temporarily closed down in 2010 since it did not have the required technical
know-how for commercial production of fluorine related gas products. To
date, the Group has no plan to reactivate Zhangjiagang Yingde's production

in the foreseeable future.

REXBRERNIREERREBR
me2010F  ARRRXBAER
REGMERAREHEEREERM
IRNETEELEE  RRAR
ENEEREREMR - HZ8A
AEBEEAERNRIL A 2K
BERREBENEE -

12 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 2 HFEEIR
The Group
5B

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETE

At | January RIAIE 992,681 1,024,363
Additions Yl 3,849,367 1,400,546
Transferred to property, plant and equipment BEAME - BEREE (1,048,285) (1,432,228)

At 31 December R12A31H 3,793,763 992,681
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CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued) 12 HEEIR@E
At 31 December 2012, certain equipment included in construction in progress R201N2FNAIAB EREIRF S
were held under finance lease. The lease term is 5 years, and at the end of the THEIGEEREAUBRERE A
lease term the Group has the option to purchase the leased equipment at a B ZMEMRASE  EHEHME
price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. Net book value of construction in AREBSEUREZEREEHERGEN
progress held under finance lease as at 3| December 2012 was RMB406,570,000 BEE R0NRFNAR: £
(201 1: RMB43,000,000). IR ERERBERBEAA
R #4065700007T(2011 5 : A R %
143,000,000 7T ) ©
At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group's borrowings and bills payable RNFENAIE: RKEABEAAR
were secured by the Group's construction in progress with carrying amount of #52467500070(201 1 & : B)MERET
RMB524,675,000 (201 1: Nil). BERAERERNE TEIANENS
BIEEA -
LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13 *ﬂ%ﬁﬁ'*f’l
Lease prepayments comprise interests in leasehold land held for own use under HEBNDESELEHEE N EER
operating leases located in the PRC as follows: FEFE H%ﬂg—:iﬂﬂéﬁ 25T
The Group
ARH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR
Land use rights held under long term leases REEEE AN L kA 311,331 126,243

The land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the operating lease

periods of 50 years.

At 3| December 2012, certain of the Group's borrowings were secured by
the Group's land use rights with the carrying amount of RMB45,069,000 (201 I:
RMB10,792,000).

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

1

’E’_

BEEBARQF

T EREROFEEHERANER
EEH o

RNRFENAIAE EEAEEAA
R #45069,0007L(2011 F: A B &
10,792,0007C ) 69 L3 fF AHEE AKE
BB o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 5 AR Y L )

4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 EBREE
The Group
rEE
Know-how Software Total
EHEM B4 Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTR AR®TxR
Cost: B
At | January 201 | R2011F1AIH 24,607 612 25219
Additions Zm 49,800 699 50,499
At 31 December 201 | R2011E12A31H 74,407 1,311 75718
At | January 2012 R2NFEIAIA 74,407 1,311 75718
Additions g0 - 1,956 1,956
At 3| December 2012 R2012%12A318 74,407 3,267 77,674
Accumulated amortisation ZitBEABEES -

and impairment losses:

At | January 201 | R20IEIRIA (12,172) (108) (12,280)
Charge for the year REHH (1781) (94) (1,875)
At 31 December 201 | K201 E12A31H (13953) 202) (14,155)
At | January 2012 R20REIAIR (13,953) (202) (14,155)
Charge for the year AEHH (3,982) (272) (4,254)
At 3| December 2012 R2012%12A318 (17,935) (474) (18,409)
Carrying amounts: KREEE -
At 31 December 2012 R2012F 12831 H 56,472 2,793 59,265
At 31 December 201 | R20I1F12A31H 60,454 1,109 61,563
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I5 RECEIVABLES UNDER FINANCE LEASE 15 EUHREHER
The gross investment and present value of receivables relating to future minimum BEAABEAREHERSSIARS
lease payments under non-cancellable finance lease agreement or arrangement MERENTY  BRAXZFEHEND
accounted for as finance lease are as follows: HENAEESENERZTIEREZY
T :
The Group
iy 3
2012 2011
Present Present
value of the value of the
minimum minimum
lease Gross lease Gross
payments  investment payments  Investment
REEE REHE

NRAME arE [RHE B A
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB00O
ARBTRE ARMTR ARETT ARBTR

Within | year —ER 2,117 2,245 2,117 2,245
After | year but within 2 years —FRERER 1,898 2,245 1,898 2,245
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRLFR 4,603 6,734 4,603 6,734
After 5 years hFg 6,547 16,405 7,182 18,650
13,048 25,384 13,683 27,629
Total CHI 15,165 27,629 15,800 29,874
Less: total future interest income W ARIRFI B A B (12,464) (14,074)
Present value of lease receivables AErRWFIERE 15,165 15,800

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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16  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

l6 HHELNER

2012 201 |
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT

Investments in subsidiaries RETB R RIEIRE
— unlisted shares, at cost —EETRG  BRAE 1,044,169 1,044,169
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) N =NIE SN 2,966,864 2,572,185
4,011,033 3,616,354

Note:  The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed Mizk: MMBATIZFBAEIEKR &E58
term of repayment. EEEEFHR o
The following list contains the subsidiaries of the Group at 31 December 2012: ATHERBER20012F12A3IBAE
B EARE
Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully FrE R 22 L A
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company  Subsidiary  Principal activities
MR/ ERIM APE  HEAF
NAEE B33t B BREX 2] BE TEXK
Yingde Gases Investment Limited BVI USD 14,700 100% — Investment holding
BERRBREBRA RBELES 14,7003 7T BETER
Yingde Gases (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD154,234,275 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited
ERRB(FE)ARRA BA 154,234275 BT BEER
Yingde Investment (Shanghai) PRC USD 148,000,000 = [00%  Investment holding
Co, Ltd.
BERA(LEB)ARRA i 148,000,000 5 7T BRER
Baotou Yingde Investment Co., Ltd. PRC RMB 100,000,000 = 100%  Investment holding
BHEAREERRAF i AR 100,000,000 7T BARR
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

le HHE DR AER(E)

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully FrE R LA
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company  Subsidiary  Principal activities
AR/ BB ARF HELA
RRER B3 3t B BREX 220 BE IEXK
Yingde New Energy Group BVI UsSD | 100% — Investment holding
Company Limited
BEHEREBERRAR EBRUEE = REER
Yingde New Energy BVI UsDI — 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited
BiEHERERLAR RBRUES | =TT REER
Yingde New Energy (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD | - [00%  Investment holding
Company Limited
BIEFER(BE)BRAR 30 | 7T REER
Prize Million Limited BVI USD?2,040,000 - 70%  Investment holding
HERUES 2,040,000 7T REZR
Million Rich Technology Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 = 70%  Investment holding
BAMXBRAF BB 10,0007 BEER
Baotou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB520,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales
BRERERBARRAR o AR 520,000,000 7T of industrial gases
EERHEIRRR
Changshu Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD 12,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
FARERBERAT & 12,000,000 3 7T of industrial gases
RERHETRRE
Changzhi Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD12,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
ReRERBARRAR th 12,000,000 37T of industrial gases
HERHETERE
Changzhou Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD 14,700,000 = 100%  Production and sales
FHBERBERAR 1 14,700,000 7T of industrial gases

HEERHETERE

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BREEHERQ A

B2
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

le HHE DR AER(E)

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully PR LAl
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company  Subsidiary  Principal activities
AR/ &7 ARF HELA
NCECE B3 3t B BEER EE20] BE TIEXK
Chongging Da'an Yingde Special PRC RMB2 1,800,000 = 100%  Production and sales
Gases Co, Ltd. of industrial gases
EEALBRBERBERAR  F AR 21,800,0007T HAEREEIRARE
Gaoyou Yingda Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD3,300,000 = 100%  Production and sales
SHRERBERAR f 3,300,000 7T of industrial gases
HERBETIRRE
Guizhou Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD20,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
EMBERBERRAR 3 20,000,000 3% 7T of industrial gases
AERHETIRAE
Hancheng Yingda Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD26,400,000 - [00%  Production and sales
EHEERBARAF i 26,400,000 7 of industrial gases
g
AERHEIRRE
Hanzhong Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD20,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales
EhRERBERAF i 20,000,000 % 7T of industrial gases
EERHEIRRAE
Hebei Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB282,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales
At RERBARAR H AR 282,000,000 7T of industrial gases
EERHEEIRRE
Hengyang Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB120,000,000 = 70%  Production and sales
EERERBARRAR f AR¥ 120,000,0007T of industrial gases
TERBETRRE
Huai'an Yingda Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB64,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
EZRERBARRAR f AR 64,000,000 7T of industrial gases

HEERHETERE
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16

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

le HHE DR AER(E)

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully PR LAl
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company  Subsidiary  Principal activities
AR/ &7 ARF HELA
ARER B3 3t B BREX EE20] BE TIEXK
Hunan Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB246,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
HERERBARAR 3 AR 246,000,000 of industrial gases
AERHETIRRE
Jiangsu Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB44,000,000 - [00%  Production and sales
IHBERBARA H AFHE 44,000,000 7T of industrial gases
AERHEEIRRE
Laiwu Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD 10,049,964 - 100%  Production and sales
RERERBARRAR i 10,049,964 7T of industrial gases
EERHEIRRE
Nanjing Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD2,100,000 - 100%  Production and sales
HRAERBARA ] 2,100,000 7% of industrial gases
EERHEIRRE
Neijiang Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD33,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
NIBERBERA f 33,000,000 7T of industrial gases
TERBETRRE
Rizhao Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB2 19,400,000 = 100%  Production and sales
ARAEREBARA f AER#219,400,000 7T of industrial gases
HERBETIRRE
Shaanxi Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC RMBI 10,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
REREREARA ] AR 110,000,000 7T of industrial gases
AERHETIRRE
Shanxi Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD32,000,000 - [00%  Production and sales
WEBEREBERA B 32,000,000 7T of industrial gases
AERHEIRRE
Tianjin Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB60,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales
REBERBARRAA i AR# 60,000,000 7T of industrial gases

HERHETERE

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

1
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

le B QR AER (@)

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully P R Lk i
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company  Subsidiary  Principal activities
AL/ BBTM ARF  HELA
DR EB F 3L 3t B BREX BR BE IEXH
Yangzhou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD26,500,000 = 100%  Production and sales
BMBERBARRAR f 26,500,000 7T of industrial gases
HERHETERE
Zhangjiagang Yingda Gases Co,, Ltd PRC USD20,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
RRERERBERAA f 20,000,000 7T of industrial gases
HERHETERE
Zhuhai Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC RMB 140,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
KeRERBERAR o AR® 140,000,000 7T of industrial gases
HERHETERE
Zhuzhou Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD8,000,000 - [00%  Production and sales
HNBEREBERAR H 8,000,000 % T of industrial gases
AERBEEIRRE
Zibo Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD?9,750,000 - 100%  Production and sales
HERERBARRAR H 9,750,000 7% of industrial gases
HERHETERRE
Anyang Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD62,500,000 - 100%  Under construction
ZHEREREERAF 2 62,500,000 % 7T (3=
Binzhou Beihai Metallurgy PRC USD6,000,000 = 90%  Under construction
Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd.
EMtBaeREREGRAR & 6,000,000 7T (i3
Changji Yingda Energy PRC RMB 1,000,000 - [00%  Under construction
Chemical Co,, Ltd.
ST BAERCIARAT H AR 1,0000007C i
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16  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) l6 HEABHES(E)
Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully ey 151400
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company  Subsidiary  Principal activities
AL/ BRTH ARE  KWELH
NEEW B 3L 3t B BRESR 2] BE TEEK
Chaohu Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD3,750,000 - [00%  Under construction
RHBEREERAT & 3,750,000 % 7T ER
Chizhou Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD4,200,000 = 100%  Under construction
ENBEREERAF 5 4,200,000 % 7T i
Hejin Wanying Industrial PRC RMB7,595,354 - 70%  Under construction
Gases Co, Ltd.
METERIXRBAREELAA AE# 7,595,354 R
Jining Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Under construction
EEREREARARA i AR 200,000,000 E7
Karamay Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD33,200,000 = [100%  Under construction
RABERBRERBERAT 5 33,200,000 7T £
Kashi Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD5,400,000 - 100%  Under construction
Rt BRREERLF h 5,400,000 % 7T e
Liangshan Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD2,100,000 = 100%  Under construction
RILBEREARLR 5 2,100,000 % 7T £
Luohe Wanying Industrial PRC USD499,994 - 70%  Under construction
Gases Co, Ltd.
BABRETIEFREERRAH F 499,994 % T R
Ningde Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD7,200,000 - 100%  Under construction
ERREREEARAA h 7,200,000 3% 7T e
Pinghu Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD20,000,000 = 100%  Under construction
FHARREBERAT 3 20,000,000 % 7T R
Qinzhou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD950,000 - [00%  Under construction
TMBEREERLA h 950,000 % 7T e
Qigihar Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD 10,000,000 - 100%  Under construction
EERRRERBAERRR h 10,000,000 % 7T R

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BERBEBERLD A
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[6 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

le HHE DR AER(E)

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully P R Lk i
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company  Subsidiary  Principal activities
AL/ BBTM ARF  HELA
DR EB F 3L 3t B BREX =20 BE IEXH
Shijiazhuang Yingding Gases Co., Ltd. ~ PRC USD27,454,74 1 = 100%  Under construction
ARERGRBERAF hE 27454741 £ 7T i
Tangshan Caofeidian Yingde PRC RMB40,000,000 - [00%  Under construction
Gases Co,, Ltd.
ELELAREREBERAR HE AR 40,0000007T (3=
Tianjin Yingda Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD15,000,000 - [00%  Under construction
RRBERBARAA e 15,000,000 % 7T £’
Tongling Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD12,000,000 = [100%  Under construction
AEARREERD HE 12,000,000 %7 (i3
Weifang Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD4,980,000 - [00%  Under construction
AN BREABERD e 4,980,000 % 7T £’
Wuhai Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB 100,000,000 = [100%  Under construction
SERRREBERD HE AR 100,000,000 7T (i3
Woujiaqu Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD8,000,000 - [00%  Under construction
ARREBEREAERA HE 8,000,000 7T (3=
Xuzhou Yingde Energy Chemical PRC RMB42,500,000 = 80%  Under construction
Co, Ltd.
frMNBREREITAERAA FE AR 42,500,000 7T i
Yancheng Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD 12,000,000 — [00%  Under construction
ERNBRERBARA RE 12,000,000 %7 T’
Yingkou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD25,000,000 - 100%  Under construction
LOARREBERAF HE 25,000,000 % 7T i
Zhangjiagang Yingdi Special PRC USD5,000,000 — 100%  Under construction
Gases Co, Ltd.
FREBABFERBERA i 5,000,000 %70 3
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16  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) l6 HEABHES(E)

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully P R Lk i
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company  Subsidiary  Principal activities
AL/ BBTM ARF  HELA
DR EB F 3L 3t B BREX BR BE IEXH
Zhangjiagang Yingding Gases Co., Ltd. ~ PRC USD60,000,000 = 100%  Under construction
KRAABREBRAF i 60,000,0003% 7T (i3
Zhejiang Zhihai Chemical PRC USD20,000,000 - [00%  Construction service
Engineering Equipment
Construction Co,, Ltd.
WIRBCIREIRERAR & 20,000,000 7T TR
Ace Turbo Group Limited BVI USDI — [00%  Import of equipment
RERZHSE Y EORBRE
Baotou Haiding Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC RMB7,000,000 - [00%  Transportation
BEERNRBRAF] i AR®7,0000007 &
Jiangsu Wanteng Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC RMB5,000,000 = [00%  Transportation
THERMAERAR i AR 5,000,000 7T &%
Beijing Yingde Qingda Technical PRC RMB20,000,000 - 85%  Consulting service
Co,, Ltd.
ERBEEAMBARELAR  F AR#20,000,0007C A AR
Zhangjiagang Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD10,000,000 = 100%  Inactive
KRAREREBRAF i 10,000,000 7 iz

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 17 RELATNER
The Group
REE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETRH
Share of net assets ERFEE 706,155 399,756

Details of the Group's associates at 3| December 2012 are as follows:

R0F2A3IE AREHHEL

AIZHET -
Place of Particulars of The Group’s
incorporation issued and effective
Name of associate and operation paid up capital interest  Principal activities
B R ER#TA R&E
NG EE KB BREAHR BYER TEER
RMB’000
ARETR
Anyang Zhongying Fertilizer Co., Ltd. PRC 490,000 37%  Production and sale of
(“Anyang Zhongying") (Note (i) chemical products
ZERBIEARAF GlE HERHELTER
(T &) (M)
Gansu Hongsheng New Energy Co,, Ltd. PRC 666,670 45%  Production and sale of
HBEAMERARAA o chemical products
HTERBELCTER
China National Air Separation PRC 50,000 30%  Manufacturing and sale of
Plant Co,, Ltd. (Note (ii)) air separation equipment
PEZEDREBER AR (FEE i) FE ENRBORENHEE
Xing'an Meng Wulan Tai'an Energy PRC 392,157 49%  production and sale of coal
Chemical Co,, Ltd. (“Wulan Tai'an") chemical products and minerals
(Note (iii))
Bz BSRERERICTAERRA hE HERHEERCTER
(BR&E (i) MIRE f
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17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group injected addition capital of RMB80 million to Anyang Zhongying during
the year ended 3| December 2012. The Group held 37% equity interest of Anyang
Zhongying as at 3| December 2012 (201 1: 22%).

(ii) In 2012, the Group acquired 30% equity interest in China National Air Separation
Plant Co,, Ltd. from certain third parties for cash consideration of RMB37,701,000.

(i)~ In2012, the Group signed an agreement with Ordos Wulan Coal Group Corporation

Limited, the sole shareholder of Wulan Tai'an for enlarging the paid-in capital of

Waulan Tai'an. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group made a capital contribution of
RMBI92,157,000 in cash to Wulan Tai'an and obtained 49% equity interest in Wulan

Tai'an.

Summary financial information on associates:

Assets
BE
RMB’000

17 RBERRNESR(®)

b

(@)

(i)

(iii)

BEWNRENRANBLEEE K&
ERLErREEARKOEET
R2012FENRA3IE REBHEAR
B5 P 22379 HOMER (201 | 4F © 22%) °

WNE REBUBSHEEBARE
37701000 LAETHE=ZFBE T H
BZ= 5 R AEA R A 7 30% RS

012F  AEEHESHRLHE—R
RERLHSHEREEARELA
BB T E W - REHRRT
REB RS AR 192,157,000 7T
SHRRIENDESHRE 49% K

e

TE\O

Bl

BENFRRBEEME

Liabilities
8
RMB’000

Equity  Revenues Loss
B KA BE
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR

2012 2012
100 per cent 100% 2,831,404 (1,166,336) 1,665,068 520,647 (6,332)
Group's effective interest AEBEGRRDE 1,090,458  (384,303) 706,155 156,194 (3,459)
2011 2011
100 per cent 100% 968,244 (2512) 965732 — (1,627)
Group's effective interest AEERENE 400,695 939) 399,756 - (244)

@ YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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18

INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

18 REENTNER

The Group
K&HE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETZT
Share of net assets FBIEFEE 38,505 -

Details of the Group's jointly controlled entities at 31 December 2012 are as

RNENAZB REBHELE LD

follows: FI2HmT
Place of Particulars of The Group’s
Name of incorporation issued and effective
jointly controlled entity and operation paid up capital interest  Principal activities
RIK E&TH FEH
RENAER XK BREAXFE BRER TEXK
Shandong Bositeng Chunye Co., Ltd. PRC USD19,181,100 40%  Production and sale of
(“Shandong Bositeng”) (Note (i)) chemical products
IR EHEELERAR P 19,181,100 7T HERHECTIER
(TR B 1) (MR )
Panzhihua Kaiyuan Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB30,400,000 49%  Production and sale of
(“Panzhihua Kaiyuan™) (Note (ii)) industrial gases
EREATREERRA I AR 30,400,000 7T HTEREETERE
(TEBAERTT ) (B EE (i)
Notes: FifRE :
(i) In 2012, the Group signed an agreement with the sole shareholder of Shandong ) 20129 » 7N 6% [ 52110 R AT B 1 D
- : ek @zt i —BRRFE TREWMS - RIEHZ
Bositeng for enlarging the paid-in capital of Shandong Bositeng. Pursuant to the i s st L
agreement, the Group shall contribute USD 18,810,000 in cash for 40% equity interest BRI AR % rﬂ/‘i“ REH Hé&ﬁ
in Shandong Bositeng, of which USD3,770,000 (equivalent to RMB23,800,000) was IE,&&0,000\%EU\EX{?HJ?Tﬁ,ﬁﬂ%%%
injected during the year. e BENFN2A3IALF
& - BIEE3770000F T ER A
R #23,800,0007T) ©
(if) Panzhihua Kaiyuan was established by the Group and a third party joint venture (i) H@@i?ZOLZfJZ\HiL%\%iE\E Z’K
partner during the year ended 3| December 2012. %@Eﬁii%%fﬁ REERAENK
M TERIEHTT -
(i) The Group's interest in jointly controlled entities are individually and in aggregate not (i) ARERE SRR B R (E sk

material to the Group's financial condition or results of operations for the year.

AHAT A EEAF B R
TAELABREATE -
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19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19 HiFRBEE
The Group
A&HE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment WmE - B RREN
and land use right TP RERNTRNK 914,730 903,393
Value-added tax recoverable AR e AR 154,328 -
Loan to a jointly controlled entity A& SN AME H R 21,070
Other long-term receivables H = HIE K - 23618
Other investment in equity securities HiRAZEFIRE 21,127 12,727
[,111,255 939,738
The loan to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, bearing interest at 8.32% per MESAREHFEAEER  EMNX
annum and repayable during 2014 to 2017. 8.32%&T B 2014 F 2017 FFEFIH] -
20 INVENTORIES 20 FE
The Group
rEH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR
Raw materials and consumables R E R (E S Fm 39,381 15,521
Finished goods EERm 21,637 16,802
61,018 32,323

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 EWERAR Efib W E
The Group The Company
KEE VN
2012 2011 2012 2011

RMB'000 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB'000  RMBO0O
ARBTRE ARETT ARBTR ARBTR

Trade receivables FE IR 623,906 447,964 - =
Bills receivable BRER 204,174 238519 - -
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (38,999) (20,508) - =
789,081 665975 - -
Deposits and other receivables e RE A YR
— associate —BERA 74,193 - - -
— third parties -%=h 456,393 363256 1,251 1,204
1,319,667 1,029,231 1,251 1,204
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered within T8 HA AT B JE M BR 0 e E b JE U TR IB SR
one year. Credit terms may be granted to customers, depending on the credit —FERlE - EBEEeREHENRTE
assessment carried out by the management on an individual basis. FrENEETE B TEEENEER o
Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest free and is repayable within 6 EWHME AR REAEER 2 EG
months. 6 fEAREE -
At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group's trade receivables with total carrying R2012F 12838 A&EEERER
amount of RMB76,050,000 (201 I: Nil) were pledged to secure the Group's A AR 7605000072011 E - T)H
borrowing amounting to RMB60,000,000 (201 I Nil). JEUER N E sh AR £ B A %5 60,000,000 7T

(20114« T)WfEFAEER -
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21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21 FEWURF R H A FE KRB ()
()  Ageing analysis @ HRERIM
Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables and bills JEUEE TR R E M W IB B AT
receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the ageing analysis as of JIE U BR T N FE W Z 4% (3N fR R ERE
the year end date: ) RNEERRRAIT25I0
T
The Group
A %8

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT AREBTR

Neither past due nor impaired ARt N FERE 579,333 555218

Less than | month past due BENEA—EA 66,521 86,016

| to 3 months past due BH—F={EA 96,693 11,906

More than 3 months but less BMEA=Z1+_fHA

than 12 months past due 46,534 12,835

Amounts past due kel 209,748 110,757

789,081 665,975
The credit terms for trade receivables are generally 30 to 45 days. The bills EREREEDH —RAR0ES
receivable are normally due within 180 days from the date of issuing. Further A BESE-REFATAEIL
details on the Group's credit policy are set out in Note 31 (b). ARES - AEEEEHRFEH

RT3 (b) °

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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2|

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against

trade and bills receivables directly (see Note 2(k)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as

21

P U B 0 e Lt B WO (40

(b)

FEW R R B R MR B
FEMR X S R B A R B S 1B 5T
ANEER - RIFAEERAKE K
BHAREMRE  EHERT R
B 65 18 1 B 3 o B MR 0 T P M
SBR(2RME200) °

FEEBAEENEH2/MT :

follows:
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBTT
At | January RIAIE 20,508 20437
Impairment loss recognised HRNREER 18,491 7253
Write-back of impairment loss REEE R - (7,182)
At 31 December RI12A31H 38,999 20,508

During the year ended 31 December 2012, trade receivables of the Group,
related to certain customers that were in financial difficulty and debt
disputes, amounting to RMB18,491,000 was determined to be impaired
(201 1: RMB7,253,000).

Trade and bills receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to

a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade and bills receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

BZEWNFENAIBLEFEE &
EEMNFUTERFHEKER L
AR #18491,00078(201 | £
AR #7,253,000 7T ) B &1 # R 2 A
REBUNTEERME -

BRR I8 A 4 A LM A B KRR 3R
RERREERRBEROESE
BURPIHYRBRNKNE
o

ELBHER N FRRENEKE
REERRES R SUEARER
RIFMBERENBILRP - RIE
NERER  EERERRBNERE
ETFEEAZ(L AERRERSG
REREERD  AERZERE
BRHRREER o
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22 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 22 BEARTER
At 31 December 2012, certain bank deposits were pledged to secure credit and R2NF1NA3INA - EFTRITERE
loan facilities granted to the Group. AREBNERIREFEEMERT
AT
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 BERASEEY
The Group The Company
rEHE YN
2012 2011 2012 2011

RMB'000 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB'0O00  RMBO0O
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Cash at bank and in hand RIIFHFEAE 846,600 958,280 4,987 51,860
The Group's cash and bank balances in the PRC amounted to RMB701,924,000 AEER202FI2A3IBEFREAR
at 31 December 2012 (201 |: RMB761,618,000). RMB is not a freely convertible & RBITHEBRAARET019240007T
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange (20115 : AR®7616180007T) ° AR
restriction imposed by the PRC government. KA TRAEABEANEY BEE
R B 78 X o B O B B O M EE I A
B
24 BORROWINGS 24 fEX
(@)  The borrowings comprise: @) BRERE:
The Group The Company
R&HE ARF
2012 2011 2012 2011

RMB'000  RMBOOO ~ RMB000  RMB00O
AR®BTRE ARETT AR®TR ARBTR

Short-term borrowings A 905,358 320,000 - -

Current portion of
long-term borrowings REEZRANERER R 2,357,959 795,520 1,618,014 231,917
3,263,317 [,115520 1,618,014 231917

Non-current portion of

long-term borrowings REERAOREEHH 2,864,774 2084823 - 695,751

6,128,091 3,200,343 1,618,014 927,668

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BERBEBERLD A
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24 BORROWINGS (continued) 24 fBR(E)
(a)  The borrowings comprise (continued): @) BREEE
The interest rates per annum of borrowings were: fEROER XA
The Group The Company
x5E LN
2012 2011 2012 2011
Short-term loans SHER LIBOR+5.0% 6.6%-7.9% - -
or 5.0%-7.2%
RBRITRIE
17 B HE+5.0%
5.0%-7.2%
Long-term loans REBER LIBOR+  LIBOR+225% LIBOR+ LIBOR+
225%6.0%  or 54%-104% 2.25%-3.55% 225%
or64%-104% RIRTAE WRBBTEX HRAFTAX
CEC:SIEES FEN= FERE FEFE
FEAE +225%  +225%-3.55% +2.25%
+2.25%60% 3k 54%-104%
56.4%-10.4%
Medium-term notes RHEE 5.5% - - -

Interest rates comprise fixed rates and floating rates based on the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR").

MR B AR M & R B R BERTTF
FmEHE (T RARTREFREF
Z|)EBRNFEIHNE
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24 BORROWINGS (continued) 24 fBR(E)
(b)  The borrowings were repayable as follows: (b) EREEHRMT :
The Group The Company
rEE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMB'000  RMBO000 ~ RMB'000  RMB00O

ARBTR ARB®TT AR®TR ARETR

On demand (note (e)) REREE (M () 1,618,014 ~ 1618014 -

Within | year —ER 1645303  1,115520 - 231917

After | year but within 2 years —EREMENR 661,046 998,558 - 463,834

After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRLFA 2,203,728 1,019,602 - 231917

After 5 years ik - 66,663 - -

6,128091 3200343  1,618014 927,668

()  The borrowings were secured as follows: () ERERBEROT :
The Group The Company
XEHE VN

2012 2011 2012 201 |

RMB'000  RMBO000  RMB'000  RMB000

ARBTR ARB®TT AR®TR ARETR
Bank loans RITEN

— secured —BHEH 3457,696 2222675 - -

~ unsecured — B 1,633,014 927668 1,618,014 927,668
Other loans HipEH

— secured - FHEA 50,000 50,000 - -

— unsecured —EIRH 110,000 - - -
Medium-term notes HHEIZ R

— unsecured — 877,381 - - -

6,128091 3200343  1,618014 927,668

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

@ REREEEARAD
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24 BORROWINGS (continued)

24 fBRE)

(d)  The carrying value of assets secured for borrowings were as follows: (d REREFNEEREEENT:
The Group The Company
BN ARF

2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TR ARETRT AR%®TR ARETRT

Property, plant and equipment Mz - WE & 1,666,884 2,334,932 - =
Construction in progress TR 524,675 - - -

Lease prepayments MEFENFIA 45,069 10,792 - =
Trade and other receivables R Mo B 5 % L fth P LK K TR 76,050 - - -
Pledged bank deposits BEIRRITER 154,009 - 34,009 —
2,466,687 2,345,724 34,009 -

(e)  Certain bank loans of the Group are subject to the fulfilment of covenants () AKBETRITEFEETETHE

relating to certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in

lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach

the covenants the drawn down loan balances would become payable on

demand. At 31 December 2012, the Group had breached certain financial

covenants in respect of certain loans amounting to RMBI,618,014,000,

of which RMB1,060,841,000 were classified as current as the Group had

breached certain financial covenants at 31 December 2012. Subsequent

to 31 December 2012, the Group received waivers from compliance with

the relevant financial covenants at 3|1 December 2012 from the lenders

concerned. Further details of the Group's management of liquidity risk are

set out in Note 31(a).

EZY m%ﬂ%ﬁZEf§w¢%
FRo-MASEEREL  AE
REZENEE - R2012F12A
3IR - AEBERTHEAAR

#1,618014000 TR BN ERNE
THBRLY  ERRASEERT
R ERATMMN 20129 12 A3
AAR™ 1060,841,000 T E S &
MEER - R2012F12A31BE
% AEEWITHERGASE
R2012F 12831 BERBBIE
ZRWEHEH - AEEBRRBE
CRBREEMNFREMNZIG) -
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 ENRIRREMENSRIE
The Group The Company
KEE EAF
2012 2011 2012 2011

RMB'O00 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB'0O00  RMBO0O
ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETT

Trade payables FERTARTX 48,492 25364 - -
Bills payable [ERZRE 648,000 269,500 - -
Payable for property, plant and equipment 1% * B/E &R IR 1,136,670 911,209 - -
Dividends payable to a non- FET IR AR AR ER B9 AR 5.

controlling shareholder - 6,480 - =
Amounts due to associates FETE & A RIFKIA 450,000 = - =
Amount due to a subsidiary FETFf /B8 A BIFRIE - = 16,744 16,744
Amount due to a shareholder FER AR R FRIA 8,050 = - =
Accrued expenses and other payables HERE M KA MM RIE 149,278 150,463 27,603 16,108
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEmIA 8,221 - 8,221 -

2,448,711 1,363,016 52,568 32,852

All the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year or FrEEMNED R HMEMRFESR N —
repayable on demand. FARZREREE
The amounts due to associates, a shareholder and a subsidiary are unsecured, FENEE AT REMITE A RZES
interest free and have no fixed term of repayable. BIEE - 2B REETFETE -

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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26  OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 26 BEHERE
At 3| December 2012, the Group had obligations under finance lease repayable as R212F12A318 REEHER
follows: REMERB2IWT :
2012 2011
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total

minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

REHE &REHEE KEHE KEEE

NHRE RERE (NFRE (XEESR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTRT ARETT AR®TT

Within | year —FR 37,099 65,701 10,525 12,497

After | year but within 2 years —FREMFA 126,987 126,564 34,327 40,388

After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRFA 343,466 379,703 67924 74,689

After 5 years hFf& 16,814 40,000 17,585 43,200

487,267 546,267 119,836 158,277

Total #ast 524,366 611,968 130,361 170,774
Less: total future interest expenses W RRFEERARE (87,602) (40,413)

Present value of lease obligations MERBHRE 524,366 130,361

Annual Report 2012 £ # @
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27

SHARE CAPITAL 27 RA
2012 2011
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RAEE &8 B F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of USD0.000001 each FARE{E0.000001 =T A EiAAK 50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTNAR
At | January RBIAIB 1,806,830,000 12 1809,232,500 12
Shares repurchased i mIEE - - (2.402,500) =
At 31 December RI2A318 1,806,830,000 12 1806,830,000 12

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the board of directors on 7 January

2011, the Company repurchased 2,402,500 shares of its own ordinary shares on

the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of HKD 3,683,000 (equivalent
to RMBI 1,684,000) in January 201 1. The lowest and the highest price paid were

HKD5.60 per share and HKDS5.70 per share respectively. All the shares repurchased

have been cancelled and accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was

reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The premium paid on the repurchase

of the shares of RMBI |,684,000 was charged to the share premium.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

1

BERBEEBEERQF

BEWIFIA7TENEESRZE &K
DRI 201 1 F | B B 4258 13,683,00078
TL(HEERARE 11,684,000 0) MEEE
B FTEIEE T 2,402,500 R E @AY » A
MEENZEEED B ATKRS.60E
TLAIS708 T - ZFER D B BB %
HH MARR 2 BBTRAMEER
LB EE BERMAZNZEE
AR 1168400070 B R R 7 & B+
|3//f\\ o
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28

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 RERKE
(@) Components of Company’s capital and reserves @@ A2IBRERFEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each ANEBEHRZZAKRIHHET
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated MERWFERD 2T EA PR
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's BEIRD o NN TS AKIMH
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the NEGMERNEHFE25 00
year are set out below: T
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
BE ROEE RAEE C
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTR AR®BTxR
At | January 201 | #0111 B 18 12 2995502 (80421) 2915093
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AF4RE e B5E = = (13,488) (13,488)
Dividends approved in respect R EFERERRE
of the previous year — — (180,683) (180,683)
Purchase of own shares B fn @ = (11,684) = (11,684)
At 31 December 201 | #2010 15128318 12 2983818  (274592) 2709238
At | January 2012 R2012F1A1R 12 29838I8 (274592) 2,709,238
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AAF4RE e B5E - - (93,540) (93,540)
Dividends approved in respect R EFERERRE
of the previous year - - (234,888) (234,888)
At 31 December 2012 201241231 B 12 2,983,818 (603,020) 2,380,810

Details of movements of the Company's share capital are set out in Note 27.

AR RBAZBHIEE 2 WP 27 °
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28  RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 28 REERKRE (@)
(b)  Dividends (b) BRE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable () AEEMNTEARBRENHR
to the year: B
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR®TT

Final dividend proposed after the end REERRERZD KBR
of the reporting period of RMBO. 15 LBRARKI5T (20114
(2011: RMBO.13) per ordinary share AR®0.1370) HYRHARE 271,025 234,888
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period MEHIKRIBIZE DR H) K E
date has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting 1% B KRR B R FE R B
period. A&
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the company attributable (i REFRBEREIHFA
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year: NAIRE FEBHKRE :
2012 2011

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBTT

Final dividend in respect of the previous RAFRFLEREX NN EFE

financial year, approved and paid REPKRE  BREBRARS0.13T
during the year, of RMBO. 3 (20115 - AR®0.107T)
(2011: RMBO.10) per ordinary share 234,888 180,683

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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28

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

©

(e)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is

able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary courses of business.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company's subsidiaries in
the PRC, appropriations to the statutory reserve were made at a certain
percentage of profit after taxation determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC. The statutory reserve can
be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or increasing capital of the

subsidiaries and is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly included the difference between the carrying value of
non-controlling interest previously acquired and the consideration paid, and
the amount recognised within equity in respect of conversion of loan in prior

years.

Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was RMB2,380,798,000
(201'1: RMB2,709,226,000).

28 RERKE(H)

(©

BB

REFASBEEARE  ARRIMR
i B8R Al A (X R T AR
MDA B - ERBER X NIk
FRNRE R - ARRNAE
BRXH RS A EDHE -

EERE

REAR B R BEAKE A R0 A
BERMA  ZFLRARTEE
AR B R ARGl RK - ERBIRF
BONETEALAERAEHE
EERET AN REEIE

B RRER - RERI - %
BAERARDIK
Hitnf# 3

Hth G E B AR BB IR AR
RESMXNHENREEENE
BUARNAFEBRETNERT
HERNEE

AHS RS

R212F 128318 DR T
ARRERFEEANBEEERA
R #2,380,798,000 (201 1 & = A
¥ 2,709,226,0007T) °
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28 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(8

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder retumns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and obligations
under finance leases) plus accrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2012, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2011, was
to maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital at reasonable level. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, raised new debt financing or sell

assets to reduce debt.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

BER

BEEBARQF

28 RERKE(E)

(e

BAER

AEEEREANTIRZABRRE
FEEREZENRN  KHERA
I BEBKFEENERERR
BAEKARGRE - LBESR
Rt @B R AEMAEARE R

HFE o

AEEIHTHFEREEEEAR
R EEEFSSRRODFR(THE
= UK ) BRIFNERMRR
s R e s MR R R T8 - I

FEERN BB HEEARE -

AEERBEARFAREALE
MEEBREARE - BkME
KARBBFERAEREHAR
(BRFBESRENR  kBEH
BRE)  MERFEIRBR SRR
MRS EEY - KHBELER

BRI R BRI S ©

=
55

3t

R20126F - REBEFRE0I1F2
% BRERBFABEEAL X
—EREAKT - BERFIARL
AEESHIRN TREMRS
CRREH R ?ﬂﬁhﬁ‘?h
EBRERLERERLE

I-H>-|%€+9”>>3+§
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28 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(8

28 RERKE(H)

Capital management (continued) (e EXEE(E)
The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio of the Group at 31 December 2012 R ER012EI2AIIBAE
and 201 | was as follows: BEARFEEERLERNT
2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
it AR®TR ARBTR
Current liabilities: mEaE
Borrowings &5k 24 3,263,317 1,115,520
Amounts due to associates FE{TESE & R RIFRIR 25 450,000 =
Obligations under finance leases MEHERE 26 37,099 10,525
3,750,416 1,126,045
Non-current liabilities: FERBEE
Borrowings fER 24 2,864,774 2,084,823
Obligations under finance leases HEMEEE 26 487,267 119,836
Total debt R 7,102,457 3,330,704
Add: proposed dividends IR 45N 28(b) 271,025 234,888
Less: cash and cash equivalents o ReERALEED (846,600) (958,280)
Adjusted net debt RRARERFHR 6,526,882 2,607,312
Total equity s 5,547,151 5,003,351
Less: proposed dividends B S (271,025) (234,888)
Adjusted capital IHBER 5,276,126 4768463
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio B FRBERLE 124% 552

Except for the bank loans which require the fulfilment of covenants relating

to certain of the Group's financial ratios as disclosed in Note 24(e) to the

financial statements, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

FRIAE ST IR AT SRR M R 24(e) W
BZERETAKENBLRZR

ARRITERIN -

ARESHEMBE

A BRI BERRER

il o
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including

amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in Note 7 and certain

of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

29 EXBEBAIRZ(E)
() HREBEASHH
AEEHREEAESEHH AL
M 7REBOZA TARRESL
FEREMFSRBEN N TET
BRFMATHFIE AT

2012 201 |

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETR

Short-term employee benefits —FR 12,377 ['1,475
Post-employment benefits —FREAFA 85 40
12,462 1,515

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF

(see Note 5(b)).
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)  Transactions with associates and a jointly controlled entity of the Group

During the year ended 3| December 2012, the Group had the following

transactions with associates and a jointly controlled entity:

Advances from/(to)

29 BEXEBARES(H)

(b) BEAEENELLARE

X%

N

BHE0NRFNA3IBIEFE K

SEBM N EBEER

MRS :

AIRAEAH

Related interest

the Group income/(expense)
REEEL, HEFER
(ffA) %A WA/ (BR)
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETT

Loan to a jointly controlled entity
Advance to an associate

Advances from associates

21,070 - 695
74,193 - -
(450,000) - -

As at 31 December 2012, amounts due from/(to) associates and a jointly R2012F12A31 8« I/ (A& QA
controlled entity: REERARMIA -
2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P aE ARBTRT AR®TRT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Loan to a jointly controlled entity A& & A AE R 19 21,070 -
Trade and other receivables MR TR S B T e IR TE
Amount due from an associate FEUE & A RIFRIA 21 74,193 -
Trade and other payables FERTHR R R E TR
Amounts due to associates JETER & R RIFKIA 25 (450,000) =

Annual Report 2012 £ # @
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29

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)  Transactions with Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited (“Bubbly Brooke”),

a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Mr. Zhongguo Sun, a

director of the Company

(i) Cash advances to Bubbly Brooke

During the year ended 3| December 2012, the Group, through a
wholly-owned subsidiary, advanced certain cash to Bubbly Brooke.
The maximum balance outstanding during 2012 was RMB73,216,000
(201 1: Nil). The amounts were bearing interest at 5% per annum

and fully repaid in 2012. This transaction also constitutes connected

transaction as defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

(i) Cash advances from Bubbly Brooke and Mr. Zhongguo Sun

During the year ended 3| December 2012, Bubbly Brooke advanced

certain cash to the Group. The maximum balance outstanding during

2012 was RMB66,172,000 (201 I: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 201 |, Mr. Zhongguo Sun
advanced certain cash to the Group. The maximum balance
outstanding during 201 | was RMB27,700,000. There was no cash

advance from Mr. Zhongguo Sun during the year ended 3| December

2012.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

1

BERBEEBEERQF

29 EXBEBAIRE(E)

B\ 8] £ E R R Bubbly Brooke
Holdings Limited ([ Bubbly Brooke |)
M—EATES * Zhongguo Sun %
E0NX5

(©)

(0

@) Bubbly Brooke f& i} 31 &

HZE0NFNANALE
B AREEAHE-—ZX2E
MBARKETHEET
Bubbly Brooke ° 20124 -
ZETHNRABERAR
#73,216,0007C(201 1 &
T) o ZLBIAL S%HEF
K BYR202F2EE
B o R ZIMER ETRE
FATERNEERS ©

1€ Bubbly Brooke # Zhongguo
SunEEBARE

HZ20102F12A381LF
[&  Bubbly Brooke#§%& T3
EETAEE - 2002F
BEROFABRERARY
66,172,0007C(201 1 5 : &) ©

HZ011ENRANBLEE
[§  Zhongguo Sun’t &£ #
ATHEETAEE 2012
F BRNRABRERAR
#27,700,0007T ° & £2012
F12 A31 B Zhongguo Sun
FRERRERSER -
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 29 BERBRILS (@)

()  Transactions with Bubbly Brooke Holdings limited (“Bubbly Brooke”),
a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Mr. Zhongguo Sun, a

director of the Company (continued)

(i) The outstanding balances with Bubbly Brooke and Mr. Zhongguo Sun

at 31 December are as follows:

(©

B 7K A 7] F E R R Bubbly Brooke

Holdings limited([ Bubbly Brooke.)

M—EARES » Zhongguo Sun %

ENRS(E)

(il EZBubbly Brooke # Zhongguo
Sun TR 12831 B K4 E
=3

2012 201 |

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTR

Amount due to Bubbly Brooke JE{<fBubbly Brooke kI8 8,050 -
Bonus payable to Mr. Zhongguo Sun &I Zhongguo Sunst &£ 1 1,000 1,600

(iv)  Bubbly Brooke is 100% held by a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr.

Zhongguo Sun is one of the specified beneficiaries of the Trust.

(v) Bubbly Brooke M — K & #
= (55 1) 100%5 5 -
Zhongguo Sun 5t 4 B (55T
MIEER@mAZ— °
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30 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 RERIEARE
(@)  Capital commitments (a) EXEE
At 31 December 2012, the Group had capital commitments for acquisition R202F 128318 XEB#®Y
and construction of properties and equipment, and other investments as ERRENEEMESR KEMEE
follows: HEREEZHWT -
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Authorised and contracted for EREAEFTH 3,448,296 2,861,007
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRETA 3,718,074 3,853,080

7,166,370 6,714,087

(b)  Operating lease commitments (b)) REHEAE
At 31 December 2012, the Group's total future minimum lease payments R20012%F 128318 BEATH
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and properties, are BT A R EBEMAAER LM
payable as follows: MENKRREERENTREZT]
W -
The Group
AEH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR AR®TE

Within | year —FR 12,781 12,133
After | year but within 5 years —FRETFA 27,929 18,355
After 5 years hLF’& 37,131 46,287

77,841 76,775
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. ERETAESARS o

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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30

31

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(c)  Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities at 31 December 2012 and
2011.

At 31 December 2012, contingent liabilities of the Company were as

30 AERIBFEEME
(0 HEEE
2011 E K2012F 128318 &
EEVESATERE

M20012F 12831 B - KAEIH

follows: BREMT :
The Company
ENAL
2012 2011
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTE
Guarantees given to banks ARAIGE THE AR
by the Company in respect of bank AR IRITE R A
loans utilised by certain subsidiaries RITIRHMER 1,345,873 [,120,000

(d)  Legal contingencies
The Group is the defendant in certain lawsuit as well as the plaintiff in other
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. While the outcomes
of such contingencies, lawsuit or other proceedings cannot be estimated
at present, management believes that any resulting liabilities will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial position or operating results of the

Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
Exposure to liquidity, credit, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal

course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(d) HEEESHE
AEERETEEFAPHOHME -
R BRI E AT
HRE - BEBAEERTELY
BEH  AEFASEMFLANG
R BERERGEMHALSIENE
BT EHAEBNABMRR KL
ERBEREANAENE -

e

3l HMERREERAAEAE
AEERAENRBESRR  FER
b FIZERAREERRTREES
BRBEL -

REBMAZNZZRARNASERR

ERELEBRNMERREEHRME
FI AT
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31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

@)

Liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB3,086,093,000. During the year ended 3|
December 2012, the Group recorded a net cash inflows from operating
activities of RMB919,095,000, a net cash outflow from investing activities
of RMB4,572,833,000 and a net cash inflow from financing activities of
RMB3,54 1,808,000, which in total resulted in a net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents of RMBI | ,930,000.

In 2013 and thereafter, the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain adequate cash inflow from operations and its ability to obtain
adequate external financing to meet its debt obligations as they fall due
and to meet its committed future capital expenditures. The directors of
the Company have carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast
of the Group for the twelve months ending 3| December 2013. Based on
such forecast, the directors have determined that adequate liquidity exists to
finance the working capital and capital expenditure requirements during that
period. In preparing the cash flow forecast, the directors have considered
historical cash requirements of the Group as well as other key factors
including new financing and certain commitment from bank, which may
impact the operations of the Group during the next twelve-month period.
The directors are of the opinion that the assumptions and sensitivities which
are included in the cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with
all assumptions in regard to future events, these are subject to inherent
limitations and uncertainties and some or all of these assumptions may not

be realised.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

BERBEBERLD A

31

PEEREERDABE®E

(2)

RBEEAR

AEBR02FENANA Z R
HEBREERDEEARY
3,086093,0007T ° & E2012F 12 A
3IBIEFE - AREREEHMNF
RenAeBAARE919095000
T RERBNFRERLEE
B AR ¥45728330007T 0 & &
EHNFRERASERARE
35418080007 * BETHRE KR EF
B 58 A AR 111930000
7TE o

WRERZE AEBFERA
RERTHELITDMENRS U
REBRANINTE S REZELED
HERIREERRERAS L - K
NRAIEFHAREHZ0I3F12
A3BENREANREREEA
ETTHENER RBEELTE
B EERRAEKENRBEER
NENZEENEEESRERY
A&k - ERERERERN
B BEECRIZRTASENE
PHEFXNA T EAEER
RNEABEEENEMEER
£ HEheEEmERERET
RITEGE - EZERR HERE
BHAMBENRERIRERS

i) o BERERMAREXTHARAE
ZAR - BREEBOBRIRET
RETEERM -
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

31 MHEAREERAABE@E

(@  Liquidity risk (continued) @ REBESER(E)
The following tables show details the remaining contractual maturities at BEARAENFFRRERE
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are (BEBESHMNEAFENNE S
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments o SBFEF R - RHREHR
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at RN R E ) R ESRAEEE
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be REAH TRALTRREEHK
required to pay. FRENHLRABNBT AN
R -
2012
More than ~ More than
Total | year 2 years
contractual but less but less
Carrying undiscounted Within than than  More than
amount  cash flow On demand | year 2 years 5 years 5 years
BRMEN
FERAE IE0E  2FRE
REEE REAR ESS IFR EFR ESFR SENE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Borrowings fER 6128091 6792591 1618014 1893903 825150 2,455,524 -
Trade and other FERRF R
payables Hfth e 508 2435893 2435893 - 2435893 - - -
Obligations under
finance lease MEREEE 524366 611,968 - 65,701 126564 379,703 40,000
9,088350 9,840,452 1618014 4395497 951,714 2,835,227 40,000
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued) 3] BXEREERERAAEEE
()  Liquidity risk (continued) @ RBELERR(E)
2011

Morethan ~ More than

Total | year 2 years
contractual but less but less
Carrying undiscounted Within than than  More than
amount cash flow  On demand | year 2 years 5 years 5 years
BRAER
FHRRE FAE 2FMNE

REEE RESE W REX IFR E2FA ASFR SFME
RMBOOO ~ RMBO0O ~ RMBO0O ~ RMBO0O  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARBTTE ARETLE ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Borrowings fa 3200343 3,583464 ~ 1286297 1103831  1,124688 68,648
Trade and other FEfFIRF
payables Hfth e 5008 1363016 1363016 - 1363016 ~ ~ ~
Obligations under
finance lease BEHEAE 130,361 170,774 = 12497 40,388 74689 43200
4693720 5,117,254 — 2661810 1144219 1199377 11,848

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk
The Group' s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. The management has a credit policy in place and the exposures

to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’ s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are generally due within 30 to 45 days from the date of billing. Moreover,
extended credit terms are granted to certain on-site customers depending
on the credit assessment carried out by the management on an individual

basis.

Significant amounts of revenue are derived from a limited number of on-
site customers. The Group' s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At 31 December 2012, 22% (201 |: 28%)
and 34% (201 I: 46%) of the total trade and bills receivables were due from
the Group' s largest customer and the five largest customers, respectively.
The Group has no significant credit risk with any of these customers since
the Group maintains stable business relationships with these large customers.
Trade receivables are denominated in RMB and are derived from revenues
earned from operations arising in the PRC. The Group performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers' financial condition and generally does not

require collateral on trade receivables.

31

PEEBREERDAEEG®E

(b)

FEABREESTAR

AKENEERREERRELE
TN EMERRE - EEEBEE
MEERR  UREEEZEER

Rl

rEEEHMEERREBE ¢
BRNEREENEPETERG
Bt - GEFREZERIEFH
2 B AT SREC 8 % B ATV (E 9 B8
N UEREMERFRENSE
BHRAE P EBAENCERE o
BURSAEHAEERHAN
B30E45H A BH o poh - B
EeRBHETRSHEREPMAE
HERGEENE  ERETEEE
Hj o

FEREIRNE R B REORIGH
REP - AEBEERRIERS
EEFPHENSBHATE - RPM
BIXRERNELNRRLEER
BRtEEAYE BYERANE
NeBR2012F 128318 AEE
BAURAIAARFEKERT R E
W RHBRE D AL EKER R
KRR E 5t 2 8 HY22%(201 |
1 28%) ]2 34%(201 | 5 : 46%) °
AEBNZERREPREEREN
RIEBE ALHZERFPREE
AEERR o YR AARE ST
{8 B i3 2R B AP B2 75 PR ER A Mk
@ o AEBHER P HMBARRS
BETERNG  —RMETHE
BRI ERE AR R o
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(b)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued) 3 MEEREERAAEBHEGE
Credit risk and concentration risk (continued) (b) EERREEESETER( ')
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount BRAEERRASHUBRIRSD
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position. BESREENREER -
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group' s exposure to credit N5 [BR A FE U AR 3% N E b FE Mk
risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note 21, EMEERRN T EHEFHRMH
2l e
The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the AEBWERETMATESAE
Group to credit risk. AR EERBER o
Interest rate risk (c) FIXER
The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group's borrowings are REBETNFEREZEFEN
disclosed in Note 24. Bzt 24 R HEER o
It is estimated that a general increase of 100 basis points in interest rates, fETFI =L 10 100 (HEZ - 7EH
with all other variables held constant, would decrease the Group's profit B EETENER TAEER
after tax and retained eamings by the amount as shown below: HEFER RSB ER N e 5
25T
The Group
FEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETRT
Effect on profit after tax and retained earnings BRIRENERRERNTE 20,595 24791

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of

the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 201 |.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

REEEERD A

HRHRERRBANEASEEER

RABENERENEHRIE £
MERMA T HRTEFERRR
BN ERBHREREHRFIRE
88 ZRANEE iemT
BETENTERNTE 20!
FNATERRRNRBZMFE o
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31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take place through PBOC or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rate adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange
quoted by the PBOC that would be subject to a managed float against an

unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of earnings outside
the PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign currency (which depends
on the foreign currency denominated earnings of the Group) or must be

arranged through the PBOC with government approval.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are transacted in
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on financial
assets and financial liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than
Renminbi. Depreciation or appreciation of the Renminbi against foreign
currencies can affect the Group's results. The Group did not hedge its

foreign currency exposure.

31

BREREER D ABE®E

(d)

HuER
ARBTA & h S RBINME - i
FRAREHINES 5 LA BES
BARBTSE M E R
HEEE - EXBFEMHESR
BEEARRTFROES - HE
RGBT BT EEORER
PR -

INENF - BEPBESRINETIE
o BTINER A (BURR A K
BASMNETIER B M) AR S - 3
AR EBETEARRITR
B

AEBRAELRENELEEH
AARER S - REERAREIN
MEMERENSREENS
BABREAZIMNEELRER - A
REHINERENAEI Y ER
SEMRE - AEREREREINE
ER o
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the

reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or

liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency

of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the

amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using the

spot rate at the end of the reporting date.

31 BREREERDAEEM®E
ERER(H)

(d)

(i)

I mBESE
TRANAKERREHR
BRANERNEEH A
ERGHECEERREME
ENEERBALE - FL25
BRME - BiaAiEs &8
MARBIR - WA EH
RENEERBE

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

HNEEE(UARBRT)
2012 2011
United States Hong Kong  United States Hong Kong
Dollars Euros Dollars Dollars Euros Dollars
E B BT e BT BIT
'000 '000 '000 000 000 000
fx  Frx  Fr  Fr  Fr  Fr
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 154810 2,445 2,905 275677 24055 8125
Borrowings fEk (2,026410)  (108,284) - (945,135) - -
Trade and other payables JEAT RN B LA
JEfI5RIA (54,024) - (1318) (10938) - (1317)
Gross exposure anising EEREBEMESE
from recognised assets BN
and liabilities (1,925,624) (105,839) 1,587 (680,3%) 24055 6,808

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

BERBEBERLD A
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

A 5 percent strengthening of Renminbi against the respective foreign
currencies at the respective reporting period end dates would
increase profit after tax and retained eamings by the amount shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular

interest rates, remain constant.

3 MEEREERAAEBEGE
d) E%ERRE)
(i)  BBESIT

REREHR  AREHE
EREEE BRI T
ARREBNEMNEER
SIEAT o Z DM RRZE PR
B8 LHENE  RE

N

N
The Group
AEH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETR

Effect on profit after tax and BRI M R

retained eamings BHEZ

(96,089) (33.688)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 201 |.

GBS MR ERREHRE
KBEEH) - BB EOEZER
EHMRAEERAN  HEINMNER
BReRTIAETENTESL
) o LA M A B IERIRINE B
INEBETEZAEETIREER
WEZE -0 FNIHTERR
BEYRERRA X o
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(e)  Fair values

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade and
other receivables, and trade and other payables, the carrying amounts

approximate fair value due to the relatively short term nature of these

financial instruments.

In respect of borrowings, receivables/obligations under finance lease and
long-term receivables, the carrying amounts are not materially different
from their fair values at 31 December 2012 and 201 1. The fair values are

estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at current

market interest rates for similar financial instruments.

In respect of derivative financial instruments, the fair value of which are

measured using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly

or indirectly based on observable market data.

Unlisted investments for which their fair values cannot be reliably measured

are stated at cost less impairment losses.

32 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final dividend.

Further details are disclosed in Note 28(b).

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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AREE
BRERAEEEY - BEMRT
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REMRRREMLENFORN S -
ARZSERIANIIHARHER
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BER ERRERER BE
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BEEARBEEEAZR - ARE
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HRITHG M R TRERR fhET
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HRARBERELIEFENEL
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33

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued the

following amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet

effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and which have not been adopted

in these financial statements.

Amendments to IAS |, Presentation of financial statements —

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS I, Joint arrangements

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 13, fair value measurement

IAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)

IAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures

Revised IAS 19, Employee benefits

IFRIC 20, Stripping costs in the production

phase of a surface mine
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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33

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2012 (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial labilities

Amendments to IFRS |, First-time adoption of International

financial reporting Standards — Government loans

Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements,
IFRS 1, Joint arrangements and IFRS 12, Disclosure of

interests in other entities — Transition guidance

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, lnvestment entities

Amendments to |AS 32, Financial instruments:

Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial instruments
and IFRS 7, Financial instruments; Disclosures —

Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

BERBEEBEERQF

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

| January 2013

| January 2013

| January 2013

| January 2014

| January 2014

| January 2015

[ January 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 33 BEMERBZ2012F12A31H

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE B RERMWIERT - FEAF
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 (continued) RETHESRNTE @)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these AEEEETEN LT REETNE
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period SHERIMBEN & IR B RS 5 RR
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely N Z . ZRR A HRGELeE
to have a significant impact on the Group's or the Company's results of operations BIR2RBWAETAR e Y ANER
and financial position. ARRINEERRNMBMRAEEEX

=2
= °
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Financial Summary

Lp S TE

SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF BB AMtGAKSEXEERE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 3| December

BZ A3 BLEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AR T AR®T R
Turnover WA 1411713 2,065,685 3004933 4240275 4,955,933
Gross profit E7 583,557 775,180 l,164,143 1,450,891 1,573,121
Profit from operations Feg g 489,875 620,388 786,244 1,091,320 1,101,717
Profit before taxation PR3 I A 467,852 565521 668379 981,447 907,129
Profit and total comprehensive AERE R
income for the year fRAE R 428,660 531,575 533216 835,647 771,285
Attributable to: fEqh
Equity Shareholders of the Company AR AEZRHA A 430,133 530,037 577,281 830819 770,117
Non-controlling interests FEPEARAR R A 2 (1473) 1,538 (44,065) 4828 l,168

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BERBEBERLD A



Financial Summary continued)

BRE @

SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF BHEESHIERARREERE
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 3| December

RI2A31H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREFIT ARETIT ARETIT ARETIT ARETR
Total non-current assets B A ELT 2,415,609 3,073,188 5415098 7,637,415 12,059,846
Total current assets B AERE 394,209 2601013 2219575 2,187,365 2,733,255
Total assets BERE 2,809,818 5,674,201 7,634,673 9,824,780 14,793,101
Total current liabilities MENE EEEE (1,224,216 (1,274,772) (2,086,894) (2.562,974) 5,819,348
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERTEER 1,585,602 4,399,429 5,547,779 7,261,806 8,973,753
Total non-current liabilities FnRBEERRE (440,726) (574,594) (1,181,228) (2,258,455) 3,426,602
Net assets BEFE 1,144,876 3,824,835 4366551 5,003,351 5,547,151
Total equity T B 1,144,876 3,824,835 4,366,551 5003,35! 5,547,151
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Corporate Information
NEER

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
KPMG

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
[0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISOR
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer

| Ith Floor, Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place, Central

Hong Kong

PRC LEGAL ADVISOR

Jun He Law Offices

32th Floor, Shanghai Kerry Center
I515 Nanjingxi Road

Shanghai, China

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre 183 Queen's Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LISTING DATE
8 October 2009

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zhongguo Sun
Ms. Wong Sze Wing

ALTERNATE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Corporate Information (continued
NE B @

STOCK CODE
02168

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.yingdegases.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
ir@yingdegas.com

HEADQUARTERS/PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 3212-13

32/F, Tower Two

Times Square, Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KYI-1111

Cayman Islands

REAHR
02168

AR

www.yingdegases.com

REEBEBHELIA

ir@yingdegas.com
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3212-13%
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Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KYI-T111

Cayman Islands
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Definitions

“Board"

“Business Day"

“CAGR"

“China” or “PRC"

“Director(s)"

“Hebei Yingde"

“Hengyang Valin”

“Hengyang Yingde"

the board of directors of our Company

a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong
Kong

Compond annual growth rate

the People's Republic of China, but for the purpose of this
annual report and for geographical reference only and except
where the context requires, references in this annual report
to “China” and the “PRC" do not include Taiwan, the Macau
Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

directors of the Company

Hebei Yingde Gases Company Limited* (b Z/ZREE G R
/A al), a company established in the PRC on 4 December 2006

and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

P

Hengyang Hualing Lianzhaguan Company Limited* (/5%
8 E B AR, a subsidiary of Hunan Valin Steel Company
Limited* (HREEZEMERNERA

shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange

Al), a company whose

Hengyang Yingde Gases Company Limited* (E1f5RE R

BBR2 7)) incorporated in the PRC on 23 December 2008
pursuant to a joint venture agreement between Yingde BV,
Hunan Yingde and Hengyang Valin, which is a joint venture

company owned as to 70% by us and 30% by Hengyang Valin

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERESEEERAF
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Definitions (continued)

EEm

“HK$", “HKD" or
"HK dollars”

"Hong Kong" or “HK"

“Hong Kong
Companies

Ordinance”

“Hong Kong Stock

Exchange”

"Huai'an Yingda"

“Hunan Yingde"

“IFRS"

“independent

third party”

“Laiwu Yingde"

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong

Kong) (as amended from time to time)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Huai'an Yingda Gases Company Limited* (% B:ER AR
/A]), a company established in the PRC on 26 January 2007

and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

Hunan Yingde Gases Company Limited* (#iFE &ZREBHR A
7)), a company established in the PRC on 29 October 2001 and

a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

Interational Financial Reporting Standards

a person or entity which is not a connected person of our

Company

Laiwu Yingde Gases Company Limited* ((REZZEREFR A
AJ), a company established in the PRC on 30 January 2007 and a

wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
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Definitions (continued)

E&E

“Listing Rules”

“Nm?/hr”

“Prospectus”

“Renminbi”’ or “RMB"”

“Rizhao Yingde"

"“SAl Report”

“SFO"

“Share(s)"

“Share Option

Scheme”

“United States”
or "US"

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (as amended from time to

time)

normal cubic meter/hour

the prospectus of our Company dated 24 September 2009

the lawful currency of the PRC

Rizhao Yingde Gases Company Limited* (H R ZREFR A
al), a company established in the PRC on 30 October 2006 and

a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

the industry report dated |3 March 2013 entitled China
Industrial Gas Market Analysis published by Strategic Analysis Inc.

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws

of Hong Kong) (as amended from time to time)

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of US$0.000001 each in the

share capital of our Company

the share option scheme conditionally approved by our shareholders
on |2 September 2009 and approved and adopted by the board
of directors of our Company on 12 September 2009

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions

and all areas subject to its jurisdiction

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Definitions (continued)

EEm

"US$”, “USD" or
“US dollars”

“Yingde BVI"

“Zhangjiagang Yingde"

“Zhuhai Yingde"

“Zibo Yingde"

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

Yingde Gases Investment Limited* (BEREBKREFRA
A)), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 18
April 2006 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and

investment holding company in our Group

Zhangjiagang Yingde Gases Company Limited* (RZKB&
BREERLD

December 2004 and a subsidiary of our Company in which we

AJ), a company established in the PRC on 3l

own 75% of the equity interest

Zhuhai Yingde Gases Company Limited* (R REREER
/A7), a company established in the PRC on 8 April 2003 and a

wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

Zibo Yingde Gases Company Limited* (SE&EZEREBER A
7)), a company established in the PRC on 8 November 2006

and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
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Definitions (continued)
E& )

In this annual report:

- “Company”, “our Company”, “our”, “we" and "us" refer to Yingde Gases Group

Company Limited Z{ERIEEE AR 2 A, an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 25 September 2007 and, except
where the context otherwise requires, include all of its subsidiaries or where
the context refers to any time prior to its incorporation, the business which its
predecessors or the predecessors of its present subsidiaries were engaged in and

which were subsequently assumed by it;

—  "Group" means our Company and its subsidiaries from time to time; and

—  the terms “associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling
shareholder”, “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have the meanings

given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context otherwise requires.

k denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or entity, or vice versa, and is

provided for identification purposes only

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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